
 

 
 
 
 
Summons to Meeting 
 
Tuesday 20 July 2021 
 

Council 
 

Wednesday 28 July 2021, 7.00 pm 
 

Greenhill Hotel, Wigton 
 

Membership: 
  
Councillor Malcolm Grainger (Chair) Councillor Allan Daniels (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Tony Annison Councillor Carole Armstrong 
Councillor Mary Bainbridge Councillor Carmel Bell 
Councillor Herbert Briggs Councillor Markus Campbell-Savours 
Councillor Nicky Cockburn Councillor John Cook 
Councillor John Crouch Councillor Janet Farebrother 
Councillor Marion Fitzgerald Councillor Peter Gaston 
Councillor Patrick Gorrill Councillor Iain Greaney 
Councillor Hilary Harrington Councillor Michael Heaslip 
Councillor Alan Hedworth Councillor Vaughan Hodgson 
Councillor Daniel Horsley Councillor Mike Johnson 
Councillor George Kemp Councillor Peter Kendall 
Councillor Alan Kennon Councillor Janet King 
Councillor Adrian Kirkbride Councillor Sally Lansbury 
Councillor Jim Lister Councillor Peter Little 
Councillor Elaine Lynch Councillor Louise Maguire 
Councillor Anthony Markley Councillor Owen Martin 
Councillor Carni McCarron-Holmes Councillor Antony McGuckin 
Councillor Ron Munby MBE Councillor Alan Pitcher 
Councillor Joe Sandwith Councillor Blain Sansom 
Councillor Paul Scott Councillor Andrew Semple 
Councillor Colin Sharpe Councillor Alan Smith 
Councillor Stephen Stoddart Councillor Kevin Thurlow 
Councillor Alan Tyson Councillor Will Wilkinson 
Councillor Lynda Williams  
 
 

Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting. If you have any questions 
or queries contact Gayle Roach on 01900 702502. 

 
 
 



Agenda 
 
1. Minutes  (Pages 7 - 18) 
 

 To agree as a correct record the minutes of the Council meeting held on 19 May 
2021. 

  

2. Apologies for Absence   
 

3. Declaration of Interests   
 

 Councillors/Staff to give notice of any disclosable pecuniary interest, other 
registrable interest or any other interest and the nature of that interest relating to 
any item on the agenda in accordance with the adopted Code of Conduct. 

  

4. Exclusion of the Press and Public   
 

 To consider whether there are any items on the agenda for which the press and 
public should be excluded. 

  

5. Questions and Petitions   
 

 To answer questions under Procedural Rule No. 4.16 from members of the 
public and from Councillors under Procedural Rule No. 4.17 and to receive 
Petitions under Access to Information Rules. 

  

6. Notices of Motion   
 

 Five Motions on Notice have been received; 
 

1. Councillor Adrian Kirkbride submitted the following motion for the 3 March 
2021 meeting which was then deferred to the next ordinary meeting of 
Council –  

 
‘This Council understands the anxiety and stress caused to vulnerable 
people, family pets and wildlife by the random use of fireworks in the days 
before and after November 5th each year, or outside of properly 
organised firework events. It therefore resolves to -  

 
1. Continue to actively support public awareness campaigns from all 

relevant agencies around the impact of fireworks on vulnerable people 
and animal welfare and the dangers of improper use, including the 
precautions that can be taken to mitigate risks  

2. Support the RSPCA public awareness campaign regarding fireworks 
and firework displays  

3. Request all public firework displays on Allerdale owned land to be 
advertised in advance of the event, allowing residents to take 
precautions for their vulnerable people and animals  

4. Write to the UK Government urging them to introduce legislation to 
limit the maximum noise level of fireworks to 90dB for those sold to the 
public for private displays, and to nationally promote the dangers and 
legalities around sale and misuse of fireworks’.  

 
2. Councillor Janet Farebrother submitted the following motion –  

 
'This Council endorses the position expressed in the letter dated 7 July 



2021 from Steve Reed MP (shadow Secretary of State for Communities 
and Local Government) that planning works best when developers and 
the local community work together to shape local areas and deliver 
necessary new homes; and therefore calls on the Government to protect 
the right of communities to object to individual planning applications’. 

 
3. Councillor Sally Lansbury submitted the following motion –  

 
‘In support of the work of the Climate Change Group Council asks officers 
to explore processes to prohibit the use of disposable BBQs on all Council 
recreational land and wildlife sites and for licensed festivals and events on 
Council owned land. 

  
Council will also write to the local MPs, T Harrison, M Jenkinson and Dr N 
Hudson, to ask them to support this action and lobby Government for 
changes to legislation to prohibit the sale of these items’. 

 
4. Councillor Peter Little submitted the following motion –  

 
‘Many of us will have seen recent news reports of people living in squalid 
housing as Matt Hancock condemns 'horrific' conditions exposed by ITV. 
Examples include damp, mouldy conditions; people having to repeatedly 
report faults and a lack of empathy shown by landlords. The Housing Act 
2004 means that by law landlords must make sure that a person's home 
is 'fit for human habitation' which means that it is safe, healthy and free 
from things that can cause a person serious harm. The Homes (Fitness 
for Human Habitation) Act 2018 is a power for tenants to hold their 
landlord, including registered providers, to account without having to rely 
on their local authority to do so. 
  
Bad housing costs the NHS an estimated £1.4 million each year and there 
is a clear link between poor housing conditions and health problems 
including respiratory issues, physical pain and mental health. Many 
residents in my Ward often contact me to express concerns they have 
with housing conditions and feel that they are hitting a brick wall when 
reporting problems. In some cases, many have reported the same 
problem on numerous occasions and feel they are being ignored. I have 
seen some of the conditions residents are living in and to put it mildly, 
they are appalling. 
  
As the local authority, Allerdale Borough Council has a responsibility to 
ensure residents live in housing that is sanitary and fit for purpose. Before 
the Pandemic, 18% of homes in England were classed as 'non-decent' 
which means: 
- It does not meet the basic legal health and safety standards for housing 
- It is not in a reasonable state of repair 
- It does not have reasonably modern facilities and services 
- It has insulation or heating that is not effective 
  
As we enter the Covid recovery phase, millions will still be left in poor 
quality, unsafe and dangerous homes. There is no question that the 
housing crisis in Britain is indisputable. Simply put, there are not enough 
alternative, affordable homes to rent for the majority of people living in 



poor quality housing. The Government recently announced its bill on 
planning reform so that they can build more high quality housing that 
people want to live in but that is not enough. That action needs to be 
implemented at the earliest opportunity. 
  
It is therefore my recommendation that members of this Council supports 
this motion in that we, Allerdale Borough Council, work more closely with 
both social and private housing landlords. We will hold to account the 
Government and landlords where significant failures in social housing 
conditions are identified and tenants do not receive a resolution’. 
 

5. Councillor Alan Smith submitted the following motion –  
 
‘Council notes that the Bill to introduce a requirement for photo ID to be 
produced by electors at polling stations is in Parliament. Even though this 
is a sledgehammer to crack a peanut, as the number of cases of 
personation at elections in recent years is in single figures, the Council 
agrees it needs to be prepared for it to become law, and for the possibility 
of an election taking place very soon afterwards.   
 
Council asks the Electoral Registration Officer (ERO) to take all possible 
steps to ensure that all electors are directly informed of this requirement: 
that they are informed of what is acceptable as ID; and that electors who 
do not have that ID are issued with ID Cards by the Council as soon as 
possible when the law takes effect.  
 
In taking these actions, the ERO and the Council is aware of and 
complies with its requirement under the public sector equality duty, and 
also honours the requirement of Part One of the Equality Act, not yet in 
force, to reduce any disadvantage from socio-economic circumstances’. 

  

7. Councillor Speeches   
 

 To hear speeches (not exceeding 5 minutes each), for up to a specified period of 
15 minutes, from individual members on a local issue in the Member’s Ward, of 
which 24 hours’ notice has been given to the Chief Executive. 

  

8. Announcements from the Mayor, Leader or Head of Paid Service  (Pages 
19 - 20) 

 

9. Portfolio Holder updates  (Pages 21 - 40) 
 

 To consider reports from Members of the Executive. 
  

10. Executive Minutes  (Pages 41 - 62) 
 

 To note the contents of the minutes of the meetings of the Executive held on 13 
January, 24 February, 24 March, 21 April and 12 May 2021. 

  

11. Review of Council Governance Arrangements and Structure  (Pages 63 - 
70) 

 

12. Overview and Scrutiny Committee Annual Report 2020-21  (Pages 71 - 76) 
 

13. Governance Updates  (Pages 77 - 82) 
 



 

 
Chief Executive 
 

 
Date of Next Meeting: 

 
Wednesday 22 September 2021, 7.00 pm 

Venue to be confirmed 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



At a meeting of the Council held in Leisure Centre, Workington on Wednesday 19 May 
2021 at 6.30 pm 
 
Members 
 
Councillor Hilary Harrington (Chair) Councillor Malcolm Grainger (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Tony Annison Councillor Carole Armstrong 
Councillor Mary Bainbridge Councillor Herbert Briggs 
Councillor Markus Campbell-Savours Councillor Nicky Cockburn 
Councillor John Cook Councillor John Crouch 
Councillor Allan Daniels Councillor Janet Farebrother 
Councillor Marion Fitzgerald Councillor Peter Gaston 
Councillor Patrick Gorrill Councillor Iain Greaney 
Councillor Michael Heaslip Councillor Alan Hedworth 
Councillor Vaughan Hodgson Councillor Mike Johnson 
Councillor George Kemp Councillor Peter Kendall 
Councillor Alan Kennon Councillor Janet King 
Councillor Adrian Kirkbride Councillor Sally Lansbury 
Councillor Jim Lister Councillor Peter Little 
Councillor Elaine Lynch Councillor Anthony Markley 
Councillor Carni McCarron-Holmes Councillor Antony McGuckin 
Councillor Ron Munby MBE Councillor Alan Pitcher 
Councillor Joe Sandwith Councillor Blain Sansom 
Councillor Paul Scott Councillor Andrew Semple 
Councillor Colin Sharpe Councillor Alan Smith 
Councillor Stephen Stoddart Councillor Kevin Thurlow 
Councillor Alan Tyson Councillor Will Wilkinson 
Councillor Lynda Williams  
 
Apologies for absence were received from  Councillor Carmel Bell, Councillor Daniel 
Horsley, Councillor Louise Maguire and Councillor Owen Martin 
 
Staff Present 
 
B Carlin, A Gilbert, N Hardy, J Irving, L Jardine, K Magnay, C Nicholson, J Owen, 
G Roach, A Seekings, S Sewell and L Tomlinson 
 
 
1. Mayor's Welcome  

 
The Mayor welcomed those present and the five newly elected councillors to 
their first Council meeting. 
 

2. Declaration of Interests  
 
None declared. 
 

3. Exclusion of the Press and Public  
 
There were no items on the agenda for which the press and public should be 
excluded. 
 

Page 7

Agenda Item 1



4. Mayor's Announcements  
 
The Mayor reviewed her term of office, due to the Covid-19 pandemic being two 
consecutive years, and said; 
‘The past 12 months have tested us all. We have sadly lost some fellow 
councillors, and many of you will have family and friends who are no longer with 
us. Whilst Covid has meant I’ve not been able to carry out the normal civic 
duties of the Mayor, I was overwhelmed by the response to my Christmas card 
competition. And more recently, I led the official tributes to the Duke of 
Edinburgh. 
 
One thing I’ve been really heartened over the last year is the way our 
communities have come together to help one another and support the most 
vulnerable. We, as a council, have obviously taken the lead in many of these 
activities. But up and down the borough local groups and volunteers have also 
provided vital services and assistance to people’. 
 
During the year a total of £4,941.73 had been raised for the chosen charities 
distributed as £2,470.87 for the Allerdale Disability Association and £2,470.87 
for ‘We Will’. 
 
The Mayor thanked those who had helped her over the past two years, in 
particular the Deputy Mayor of Allerdale for his support, the Mayor’s Secretary 
and Democratic Services and many other Allerdale Officers. 
 

5. Election of Mayor for the Forthcoming Year  
 
Councillor H Harrington invited nominations for the election of Mayor of 
Allerdale for the forthcoming year. 
 
Councillor T Markley nominated Councillor Malcolm Grainger to be elected 
Mayor of the Borough for 2021/22. This was seconded by Councillor A Tyson. 
 
A vote was taken, 27 in favour, 11 against and 6 abstentions.  The motion was 
carried.  
 
Resolved – That Councillor Malcolm Grainger be elected Mayor of the Borough 
for the ensuing year 2021/22.  
 
Councillor Malcolm Grainger took the Declaration of Acceptance of Office and 
assumed the Chair role. 
 

6. Election of Deputy Mayor for the Forthcoming Year  
 
Councillor M Grainger invited nominations for the appointment of Deputy Mayor 
of Allerdale for the forthcoming year. 
 
Councillor J Cook nominated Councillor Allan Daniels to be elected Deputy 
Mayor for the ensuing year 2021/22.  This was seconded by Councillor M 
Grainger. 
 

Page 8



Councillor P Scott nominated Councillor Carole Armstrong to be elected Deputy 
Mayor for the ensuing year 2021/22.  This was seconded by Councillor G 
Kemp. 
 
A vote was taken, 24 in favour of Councillor A Daniels, 17 in favour of Councillor 
C Armstrong and 3 abstentions.   
The motion in favour of Councillor Daniels was carried. 
 
Resolved – That Councillor Allan Daniels be elected as Deputy Mayor of the 
Borough for the forthcoming year 2021/22. 
 
Councillor Allan Daniels took the Declaration of Acceptance of Office and took 
his position next to the Mayor. 
 

7. Speech of the Incoming Mayor  
 
Councillor Grainger, newly elected Mayor of the Borough, thanked Councillors 
for his election and the opportunity to represent the Council, fellow councillors, 
officers and the public.  
Councillor Grainger paid tribute to the hard work Councillor Harrington had 
carried out over her term of office and said she would be a hard act to follow. 
 
Councillor Grainger announced that his chosen charities for the forthcoming 
year were to be Great North Air Ambulance and ‘Jigsaw’ Cumbria’s Children’s 
Hospice. 
 

8. The Leaders Report  
 
In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, Councillors received the report of 
the Leader of the Council giving details of his chosen Executive and their 
Authority to Act. Members also received the Scheme of Delegation. 
 
Councillor M Johnson moved the recommendations within the report; this was 
seconded by Councillor M Fitzgerald. The Leaders report was noted. 
 
Councillor J Farebrother moved an amendment to the Scheme of Delegation 
and said in the interest of openness and transparency she considered it 
important to re-insert the requirement for any application directly involving a 
member or officer of the Council to be reserved to the Development Panel. 
Councillor Farebrother therefore moved that under the Chief Officer Place and 
Governance, that paragraph 3.3.10 be removed and the following wording be 
added to paragraph 3.3.8; 
 
d) Any applications submitted on any matter directly affecting or involving a 
Member or Officer of the Council where the Chief Officer has been informed of 
their involvement. 
 
This was seconded by Councillor E Lynch. 
 
A vote was taken on the amendment becoming the substantive motion, 42 in 
favour, 0 against and 2 abstentions. The motion was carried. 
 

Page 9



A vote was taken on the motion, 42 in favour, 0 against and 2 abstentions. 
The motion was carried. 
 
Resolved 
 
That – 
 

1. The Executive membership and responsibilities be noted 
2. The Scheme of Delegation be agreed as amended. 

 
 Councillor Alan Pitcher joined the meeting   
  
9. Minutes  

 
The minutes of the previous meeting held on 3 March 2021 were agreed as a 
correct record. 
  

10. Committee Memberships 2021-22  
 
Councillors considered nominations to Committees, Panels and Tribunals for 
2021/22.  Their Terms of Reference were also considered.   
 
Resolved 
 
That - 
 

a) The Terms of Reference, as detailed in Appendix B of the report, be 
agreed 

b) The Committees, Panels and Tribunals memberships for 2021/22 be 
agreed as below; 

 
Audit Committee (7) 
 

Allerdale 
Conservatives 
(3) 

Allerdale 
Independents 
(2) 

Labour  
(2) 

P Gorrill G Kemp M Bainbridge 

V Hodgson J King M Campbell-Savours 

A Tyson   

 
 
Chief Officer’s Employment Panel (5) 
 

Allerdale 
Conservatives 
(2) 

Allerdale 
Independents 
(2) 

Labour  
(1) 

M Fitzgerald G Kemp A Smith 

M Johnson P Scott  

 
 
 
 

Page 10



Development Panel (12) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Discretionary Housing Payments (3) 
 

Allerdale 
Conservatives 
(1) 

Allerdale 
Independents 
(1) 

Labour  
(1) 

A Markley C Armstrong C McCarron-Holmes 

 
 
Licensing Committee (15) 
 

Allerdale 
Conservatives 
(6) 

Allerdale 
Independents 
(5) 

Labour  
 
(4) 

A Daniels H Briggs M Bainbridge 

M Grainger N Cockburn P Kendall 

T Markley P Gaston E Lynch 

R Munby H Harrington A Smith 

C Sharpe A Kirkbride  

A Tyson   

 
 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee (12) 
 

Allerdale 
Conservatives 
(4) 

Allerdale 
Independents 
(4) 

Labour  
(3) 

Moorclose 
Independent 
(1) 

A Annison I Greaney M Campbell-
Savours 

S Stoddart 

A Daniels H Harrington M Heaslip  

P Gorrill D Horsley C McCarron-
Holmes 

 

M Grainger P Scott   

 
 
 
 

Allerdale 
Conservatives 
(4) 

Allerdale 
Independents 
(4) 

Labour  
(4)  

A Annison C Armstrong J Farebrother 

A Daniels N Cockburn E Lynch 

R Munby D Horsley A McGuckin 

A Tyson G Kemp A Semple 

Substitute(4)  Substitute (4) Substitute (4) 

A Hedworth H Briggs J Crouch 

A Kennon H Harrington M Heaslip 

J Lister A Kirkbride P Kendall 

A Markley P Scott A Smith 

Page 11



Personnel Tribunal (5) 
 

Allerdale 
Conservatives 
(2) 

Allerdale 
Independents 
(2) 

Labour 
(1) 

M Grainger N Cockburn S Lansbury 

A Markley P Scott  

 
Standards Committee (7) 
 

Allerdale 
Conservatives 
(2) 

Allerdale 
Independents 
(3) 

Labour  
(2) 

Non-Council 
Members (2) 

M Grainger H Briggs M Bainbridge P Burns 

A Kennon N Cockburn E Lynch T Cook 

 P Gaston   

 
Councillor M Grainger then invited nominations to appoint each Committee 
Chair and Vice-Chair. 
 
Audit Committee 
 
Councillor M Johnson nominated Councillor A Tyson as Chair. This was 
seconded by Councillor M Fitzgerald. 
 
A vote was taken, 28 in favour, 1 against and 16 abstentions. The motion was 
carried. 
 
Councillor A Smith nominated Councillor M Bainbridge as Vice-Chair. This was 
seconded by Councillor C McCarron-Holmes. 
 
A vote was taken, 28 in favour, 1 against and 16 abstentions. The motion was 
carried. 
 
Chief Officers Employment Panel 
 
Councillor M Fitzgerald nominated Councillor M Johnson as Chair. This was 
seconded by Councillor A Pitcher. 
 
A vote was taken, 28 in favour, 0 against and 17 abstentions. The motion was 
carried. 
 
Councillor M Heaslip nominated Councillor A Smith as Vice-Chair. This was 
seconded by Councillor C McCarron-Holmes. 
 
Councillor M Johnson nominated Councillor M Fitzgerald as Vice-Chair. This 
was seconded by Councillor J Cook. 
 
A vote was taken, 12 in favour of Councillor A Smith, 16 in favour of Councillor 
M Fitzgerald and 17 abstentions. The motion in favour of Councillor M 
Fitzgerald was carried. 
 

Page 12



Development Panel 
 
Councillor A Pitcher nominated Councillor T Annison as Chair. This was 
seconded by Councillor M Johnson. 
 
Councillor P Scott nominated Councillor N Cockburn as Chair. This was 
seconded by Councillor W Wilkinson. 
 
A vote was taken, 27 in favour of Councillor T Annison, 17 in favour of 
Councillor N Cockburn and 0 abstentions. The motion in favour of Councillor T 
Annison was carried. 
 
Councillor A Smith nominated Councillor J Farebrother as Vice-Chair. This was 
seconded by Councillor C McCarron-Holmes. 
 
A vote was taken, 40 in favour, 1 against and 3 abstentions. The motion was 
carried. 
 
Discretionary Housing Payments  
 
Councillor M Johnson nominated Councillor T Markley as Chair. This was 
seconded by Councillor T Annison. 
 
A vote was taken, 28 in favour, 0 against and 17 abstentions. The motion was 
carried. 
 
Councillor A Smith nominated Councillor C McCarron-Holmes as Vice-Chair. 
This was seconded by Councillor M Heaslip. 
 
A vote was taken, 28 in favour, 1 against and 16 abstentions. The motion was 
carried. 
 
Licensing Committee 
 
Councillor M Johnson nominated Councillor R Munby as Chair. This was 
seconded by Councillor M Fitzgerald. 
 
A vote was taken, 26 in favour, 0 against and 19 abstentions. The motion was 
carried. 
 
Councillor A Smith nominated Councillor P Kendall as Vice-Chair. This was 
seconded by Councillor C McCarron-Holmes. 
 
A vote was taken, 27 in favour, 3 against and 15 abstentions. The motion was 
carried. 
 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 
Co-Chair 1 
Councillor A Smith nominated Councillor M Heaslip as Chair. This was 
seconded by Councillor C McCarron-Holmes. 
 

Page 13



Councillor P Scott nominated Councillor I Greaney as Chair. This was seconded 
by Councillor W Wilkinson. 
 
A vote was taken, 27 in favour of Councillor M Heaslip, 16 in favour of 
Councillor I Greaney and 2 abstentions. The motion in favour of Councillor M 
Heaslip was carried. 
 
Co-Chair 2 
Councillor A Smith nominated Councillor C McCarron-Holmes as Chair. This 
was seconded by Councillor M Heaslip. 
 
Councillor P Scott nominated Councillor I Greaney as Chair. This was seconded 
by Councillor P Gaston. 
 
A vote was taken, 28 in favour of Councillor C McCarron-Holmes, 16 in favour 
of Councillor I Greaney and 1 abstention. The motion in favour of Councillor C 
McCarron-Holmes was carried. 
 
Personnel Tribunal 
 
Councillor M Johnson nominated Councillor T Markley as Chair. This was 
seconded by Councillor A Hedworth. 
 
A vote was taken, 27 in favour, 4 against and 14 abstentions. The motion was 
carried. 
 
Councillor A Smith nominated Councillor S Lansbury as Vice-Chair. This was 
seconded by Councillor M Campbell-Savours. 
 
A vote was taken, 39 in favour, 1 against and 2 abstentions. The motion was 
carried. 
 
Standards Committee 
 
Councillor M Johnson nominated Councillor M Grainger as Chair. This was 
seconded by Councillor T Markley. 
 
A vote was taken, 18 in favour, 16 against and 11 abstentions. The motion was 
carried. 
 
Councillor A Smith nominated Councillor E Lynch as Vice-Chair. This was 
seconded by Councillor M Campbell-Savours. 
 
A vote was taken; 41 in favour, 1 against and 1 abstention. The motion was 
carried. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 14



Resolved – That - 
 

c) The Committee Chairs and Vice-Chairs for 2021/22 be agreed as 
follows; 

 
Audit Committee 
 
Chair:  A Tyson    Vice-Chair: M Bainbridge 
 
Chief Officer’s Employment Panel 
 
Chair:  M Johnson    Vice-Chair: M Fitzgerald 
 
Development Panel 
 
Chair: T Annison    Vice-Chair: J Farebrother 
 
Discretionary Housing Payments 
 
Chair: T Markley    Vice-Chair: C McCarron-Holmes 
 
Licensing Committee 
 
Chair:  R Munby    Vice-Chair: P Kendall 
 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 
Co-Chair: M Heaslip   Co-Chair: C McCarron-Holmes 
 
Personnel Tribunal 
 
Chair: T Markley    Vice-Chair: S Lansbury 
 
Standards Committee 
 
Chair:  M Grainger    Vice-Chair: E Lynch 
 
 

11. Appointment of Representatives to Serve on Outside Bodies and Joint 
Committees 2021-22  
 
Members considered the appointment of representatives on outside bodies and 
Joint Committees for the ensuing year(s) which were a function of Council.  
 
Resolved 
 
The appointment of representatives on outside bodies and Joint Committees for 
the ensuing year(s) be as follows: 
 
 
 
 

Page 15



Name of Outside 
Body 

Number of 
representatives 

Length of 
appointment 

Representative(s) 

Cumbria County 
Council Pensions 
Forum 

1 1 year Cllr S Lansbury 

Cumbria Health 
Scrutiny Committee 

1 + 2 subs 1 year Cllr A Semple 
Cllr A Pitcher Sub 
Cllr P Kendall Sub 

Local Enterprise 
Partnership (LEP) 
Scrutiny Board 

1 1 year Cllr J Lister 

 
  

 
12. Calendar of Meetings 2021-22  

 
The Chief Officer Place and Governance submitted a report which sought 
members to consider and approve the calendar of meetings for the period June 
2021 to May 2022.  
 
Councillor M Fitzgerald moved the recommendation; this was seconded by 
Councillor M Johnson.  
 
A vote was taken, 44 in favour, 0 against and 1 abstention. The motion was 
carried. 
 
Resolved 
 
That the calendar of meetings for the period June 2021 to May 2022 as set out 
in Appendix A of the report be approved. 
 

13. Governance Updates  
 
The Chief Officer Place and Governance submitted a report which sought to 
update members on all delegated decisions taken during the Covid-19 
pandemic since the last report to Council on 3 March 2021. 
 
Councillor M Fitzgerald moved the report; this was seconded by Councillor A 
Pitcher. 
 

Name of Joint 
Committee 

Number of 
representatives 

Length of 
appointment 

Representative(s) 

Cumbria Police & 
Crime Panel Joint 
Committee 

1 1 year Cllr A Smith 

Solway Coast AONB 
Joint Advisory 
Committee 

2 1 year Cllr J Cook 
Cllr P Kendall 

West Cumbria 
Cyclepath Network 
Steering Group 

1 1 year Cllr J Farebrother 

Page 16



Resolved 
 
That the summary of all CEO Urgent Action decisions and Special Urgency 
Executive decisions detailed in section 4.0 of the report be noted. 
 

The meeting closed at 7.58 pm 
 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18



The Mayor, Councillor Malcolm Grainger 
Engagements since the last Council meeting on  

19 May 2021 
 
 

 
08 June 2021 

 
Visit to The Great North Air Ambulance 
Headquarters - Langwathby 
 

 
09 June 2021 

 
Wigton Food Pantry 
 

 
21 June 2021 
 

 
Flag Raising for Armed Forces Day – 
Allerdale House 
 

 
03 July 2021 
 

 
Ireby Carnival 

 
05 July 2021 
 

 
Flag Raising for the NHS – Wigton 
Masonic 
 

 

 
 
 

The Deputy Mayor, Councillor Allan Daniels 
Engagements since the last Council meeting on  

19 May 2021 
 

 
14 July 2021 
 

 
Ribbon Cutting Ceremony of Keswick 
Community Housing Trust – Southey 
Street, Keswick 
 

 

Page 19

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 20



 

 

Allerdale Borough Council 
 

Council – 28 July 2021 

 

Portfolio Holder updates
 

Portfolio holder Councillor Mike Johnson – Leader 

Report from Senior Management Team 

Wards affected   As indicated in the main body of the report 

Is this a key decision  No 

 
 

1.0  The reason for the decision 

1.1 To update Council on the activities and decisions of Portfolio Holders since the last 
meeting. 

2.0  Recommendations 

2.1 That Members note the content of the report. 

3.0  Background and Introduction 

3.1 This is a regular report that comes to each meeting of Council. The purpose of the 
report is to provide full Council with an update and overview of the activities of 
individual portfolio holders.  

3.2 The activities of the Portfolio Holders are given in the following sections. 

4.0  Leader of the Council: Economic Growth, Community Development and 
Place-making Portfolio: Cllr Mike Johnson  

Levelling Up Fund 

4.1 With support from Cumbria County Council the Council has submitted an 
application to the Levelling Up Fund which seeks £8.19 million of Government 
funding towards a £9.1 million Workington Gateway project.  If the funding bid is 
successful the proposed scheme will deliver improvements to the A66/A596 
junction at Ramsay Brow along with widening of the road at Hall Brow. This will 
address existing problems for HGV traffic seeking to use this route for access to the 
Port of Workington and industrial uses to the north of the town and support further 
investment in these areas. Improved access will provide a viable alternative to the 
A596 for HGV drivers and benefit communities along the A596. Residents in Hall 
Brow will benefit from improved parking provision. The scheme also includes 

Page 21

Agenda Item 9



 

 

proposals to improve pedestrian access across Washington Street and improve 
access to and within Curwen Park including the development of a new cycleway. 
This will improve access for pedestrians within the town centre and better link 
Curwen Park to the town centre providing a more attractive environment for 
residents, shoppers and other visitors. The proposals complement the projects to 
be brought forward as part of the Workington Town Deal. 

Shop Local 

4.2 The Council is supporting a Shop Local campaign to encourage people to support 
the local high street. A video has been produced 
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=xyi46YABeuM to support the campaign along 
with banners in some of our towns and colourful window stickers which are being 
distributed to local shops. 

Supporting Business Campaign and Events Programme 

4.3 We continue to deliver a programme of activity to support local business including a 
weekly newsletter which offers information and advice to businesses who have 
subscribed. After some great work on this campaign our Business Services Co-
ordinator, Ellie Jones, has been appointed to the Events Manager role and is 
working to deliver an exciting programme of festivals and events this summer 
including Taste Cumbria in Cockermouth and a new Taste of the Sea festival in 
Maryport. We have now appointed a new Business Services Co-ordinator to 
continue to deliver support to local businesses. 

As part of our programme of support for the establishment of local business groups 
in areas where they are not already well established the Solway Coast Business 
Group is now fully incorporated and has elected a chair and secretary. The Council 
has provided £1,000 development funding to support the work of the group. 

Maryport - Future High Street (FHS) update 

4.4 Formal confirmation of funding of £11,527,830 was received for the revised future 
high street proposals on 4th June. A memorandum of understanding is shortly to be 
implemented which will confirm arrangements for £3,268,064 (year one 2021/2022 
grant). This grant will be issued once the monitoring and evaluation process has 
been approved. 

Procurement procedures are currently being considered for the programme. This is 
necessary to ensure the appropriate routes to the commissioning, setting of work 
packages also legal and economic considerations take place. Once agreement has 
been reached regarding procurement, then the process of engaging appropriate 
contractors will commence.  

Additional support to deliver the programme is now being provided by Britain’s 
Energy Coast (BEC) and a draft timeline of work has been produced. The 
programme includes design, planning and construction work all of which is due to 
be completed by the end of March 2024.  

Regular meetings of the three stakeholder groups associated with both the FHS 
and HAZ programmes (The Advisory, Engagement and Delivery Groups) are now 
taking place. Members have been briefed on recent progress which includes the 
Council purchase of two key buildings. This relates to the unused former 

Page 22

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=xyi46YABeuM


 

 

Christchurch building which will form the new location for the Maritime Museum and 
the former Carlton Cinema which will form a new community hub. Keys to both 
buildings are now within the hands of the Council awaiting further inspection and 
survey work to be undertaken.  

Maryport Heritage Action Zone (HAZ) 

4.5 Capital Programme:  Sketch plans are being worked up into preferred options for 
main capital projects. The proposals for Heron Foods frontage has gained planning 
permission and is expected to start on site this autumn. The shopfront grant 
scheme has been launched and there has been a very good response.  The shops 
that have been put forward will go to a Design and Assessment panel in order to 
identify the eligible and priority shopfronts that will go forward for sketch schemes to 
be produced in line with the new Maryport Shopfront Design Guide. 

Cultural Programme: This is a separately funded element of the HAZ programme 
and will be driven and overseen by a Cultural consortium of local cultural and 
community organisations. In recognition of Maryport’s under-developed Cultural 
Sector, a cultural mapping research exercise has been undertaken to analyse its 
strengths and weaknesses and inform ways forward for developing the sector and 
the Cultural Programme. The report will be available soon.  

Community Engagement: There is on-going community engagement on the 
Regeneration programmes through the new Governance structure and stakeholder 
engagement on the individual projects.  An oral history recording project is in 
progress focussing on memories of Senhouse Street and Curzon Street in the 
1930s and 40s. 

Procurement and Commissioning Workshops 

4.6 Our Procurement and Commissioning team has undertaken further workshops for 
officers, highlighting the importance of securing social value in all Allerdale 
contracts by reinforcing the message that the Council is keen to use its buying 
power to deliver social welfare. The team is available to provide similar workshops 
for elected members, including an introduction to procurement or a session to 
demystify some of the key processes involved in purchasing and supply, and what 
simple steps can be taken to add value. 

Procurement support for elections  

4.7 The Procurement and Commissioning team supported Allerdale’s Electoral 
Services (and Copeland Borough Council) to manage procurement of essential 
supplies and equipment to successfully facilitate the recent PCC and local 
elections: polling station screens, hand sanitiser, face coverings, social distancing 
and other measures to ensure electors and staff were safe. 

Supporting local business 

4.8 The Procurement and Commissioning Team have also implemented a range of new 
ideas to reach and educate local businesses including input to the new business 
website https://businessallerdale.co.uk/events-and-training/ . The team also filmed a 
Q&A session that has been published on the website and distributed to local 
business networks. A link to the video is here: 
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Sy-BmqGniFA 

Page 23

https://eur01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fbusinessallerdale.co.uk%2Fevents-and-training%2F&data=04%7C01%7CBrendan.Carlin%40Allerdale.gov.uk%7C2c3d45e1966d428d989008d92a8cbc22%7Ca10953b672334b77b858e13f522d29c8%7C0%7C0%7C637587606202981275%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=C1HQBEY8d8cCTDfEaRjft0BLD4jfH2JL8RehG0%2FeLi8%3D&reserved=0
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Sy-BmqGniFA


 

 

Estates 

4.9 Upgrade of Road Bridge, Port of Workington – Network Rail: Network Rail have 
completed the upgrade of this bridge in order that it can take heavier traffic to the 
Port, this will improve the facilities for the Port and open up further development 
land in the nearby vicinity.  Network Rail remain on site to carry out tidying up work 
but both carriageways on the bridge are now open. 

 Demolition of the Opera House, Workington: The main structure of the building is 
now mostly demolished however issues have arisen with firstly a Party Wall Act 
matter with an adjoining owner and the requirement on part of the site to provide 
retaining walls.  Solutions are available for both matters and we are working closely 
with the vendor to agree a suitable and achievable conclusion. 

The Old Station Building, Keswick: Detailed discussions have commenced with the 
Council’s tenant of the above property in respect of a disposal to them, it is hoped 
that this will result in a capital receipt for a building to enable the wider development 
plans of the immediate area.  The building is listed and therefore the re-
development opportunities for the Old Station building are extremely limited. 

Washington Square, Workington: It still continues to be a difficult period for this 
retail centre with settlements on rent renewals being at a lower rent that 18 months 
ago and the loss of key tenants including Debenhams.  However this Centre 
continues to out-perform most other retail centres in terms of footfall as Washington 
Square benefits from a loyal customer base.  It is not all bad news in terms of 
occupancy as a lease has recently been signed for a unit to be occupied for Food 
and Beverage purposes. 

Property services 

4.10 Helena Thompson Museum: Refurbishment and improvement works at the Helena 
Thompson Museum are now complete. The improvements have been well received 
by the operators (WHG) and members of the public.  An official opening ceremony 
is planned for July. 

Workington Hall: Tender documents are currently being prepared for the next phase 
of works at Workington Hall. Bat surveys have been taking place over the last 
couple of months and will continue for a further couple of months. Subject to 
receiving tenders within budget, scheduled monument consent and compliance with 
the ecologist requirements, we are anticipating being on site in late September. 

Allerdale House: Works are taking place to facilitate the roll out of hybrid working 
arrangements for staff.  An area on the first floor has been remodelled to provide up 
to 32 desks which will be able to be booked by staff who need to come into the 
office, once Covid-19 restrictions are fully lifted.  Two further phases of work on the 
first floor will follow to the central areas to provide further desk space and a 
breakout area. 

Riverbank works Millfield, Workington: Works have just been completed on the 
riverbank / access road leading into Millfield, Workington. ABC worked with the 
Environment Agency and Ashcroft contractors to design a solution to prevent further 
erosion of the riverbank and safeguard the access road. 

Page 24



 

 

5.0  Deputy Leader of the Council: Policy, Governance and People 
Resources Portfolio: Cllr Marion Fitzgerald  

 Policy 

5.1 Due to the pandemic, it was agreed last year that there would be an Interim 
Delivery Plan covering a single year.  It was the prudent action to take at the time 
because circumstances meant that we could not immediately pursue all of the 
objectives in our ambitious ten year strategy adopted in 2019.  However, we have 
not abandoned the six main themes of the strategy.  This year, with the lingering 
uncertainties surrounding the exact timing of the easing of lockdown restrictions, it 
was again considered prudent to adopt a one year Delivery Plan although, again 
the overall strategic direction does not need to change. 

In the shorter term, some Council activity remains focused on supporting our 
communities and businesses and ensuring that residents have access to the 
services and support that they need from the Council.  However, it is to be hoped 
that, along with the rest of the country, we are entering a much more positive phase 
of transition and recovery.  For the Council, this means developing a dynamic 
approach, helping the local economy rebuild whilst, at the same time, looking 
forward and preparing the groundwork for future success. 

As well as the Delivery Plan 2021/22, we have developed and adopted an 
Economic Recovery and Growth Strategy and a Resilient Communities Strategy.  
These have been discussed within the cross party Policy Group. The Growth 
Strategy is a wide ranging but detailed document which focuses on the 
considerable potential waiting to be unlocked within Allerdale, including in the 
farming and fishing economies.   

The consultant team that produced the Growth Strategy are currently developing a 
suite of high-level regeneration plans for Cockermouth, Keswick, Silloth and 
Aspatria. A plan for Wigton is being undertaken by Cumbria County Council as part 
of the Borderlands Programme. These will complement the plans that have already 
been developed for Workington and Maryport to ensure that the Council develops a 
comprehensive project pipeline.  It will put the Council in a good position to respond 
to funding opportunities in the future.    

Throughout the pandemic, as well as administering the various support grants for 
businesses, officers have been available to respond to all enquiries and to offer 
advice on reopening premises safely in alignment with the changing restrictions. 

Nuclear issues 

5.2 The Geological Disposal Facility Working Group (Allerdale) continues to meet 
regularly and to make progress towards establishing a potential Search Area for a 
GDF within Allerdale.  Although national restrictions have meant that large scale 
public engagement could not be undertaken in the earlier stages, virtual sessions 
for stakeholder groups have taken place and the Group is keen to carry out as 
much face to face engagement in the coming weeks and months as the gradual 
easing of restrictions will allow. 

In the meantime, as members will recall from the email sent in early June, regular 
updates are provided in a monthly newsletter and a Virtual Exhibition can be 

Page 25



 

 

accessed via the Allerdale Working Group’s website.  As well as articles within the 
local press, a mail drop to each individual household in Allerdale is planned. 

Members of the Working Group, including the Independent Chair and 
representatives from Radioactive Waste Management (RWM) will provide a full 
update for councillors on 27 July. 

Following on from the above, a presentation for members from NuLeaf (Nuclear 
Legacy Advisory Forum) is being arranged for 12 August.  NuLeaf is an 
independent organisation and the representative body of the Local Government 
Association on nuclear matters.  Over 100 Local Authorities are members.  The 
briefing on 12 August is therefore a great opportunity to discuss issues around the 
GDF with experts who have had no direct contact with the Allerdale Working Group 
and who are therefore in a perfect position to offer neutral and balanced views. 

Community Safety Partnership (CSP) and Local Focus Hub 

5.3 All three Cumbrian CSPs are about to undergo a period of significant change as it 
was recently announced that all funding from the Police and Crime Commissioner 
will cease with effect from 30 September.  Discussions are ongoing, both internally 
and between the Partnerships, as to how this change will be managed.  It is the 
PCC’s stated intention to provide additional resource to the Local Focus Hubs. 

In the meantime, CSP (West) has been working closely with both the Allerdale and 
Copeland Local Focus Hubs.  Our combined efforts have resulted in a successful 
bid for funding to address safety and security concerns in St Michaels, Workington.  
The Government’s Safer Streets Fund has committed £311,358 to be spent on 
improved lighting and additional security where appropriate.  Support and advice 
will also be available for residents who wish to enhance home security measures.  

Unfortunately the bid to the Safer Streets Fund on behalf of Whitehaven was 
unsuccessful although a fresh submission is about to be made as part of the 
second funding round.  

The Stronger Together Moorclose Group continues to meet regularly to provide 
support for the many and varied services which operate from the Community 
Centre.  Moorclose Community Centre, along with other providers in Allerdale will 
benefit from the Holiday Activities Fund (HAF). This provides targeted funding for 
children to engage in educational and outdoor activities throughout the school 
holidays and is a direct result of the campaign initiated by Marcus Rashford. 

Cumbria Housing Group 

5.4 This group last met in June.  Amongst the items under discussion was the recent 
controversy over proposals to alter the eligibility for local housing within the LDNP 
to include Cumbria-wide employment criteria.  It has now been determined that the 
Local Occupancy Restrictions will remain unchanged but kept under review.   

The National Park Authority also intends to establish a Task and Finish Group to 
examine how new homes are being occupied, and what can be done to ensure that 
they contribute to resilient communities. 

An email was sent to all councillors on 27 May supplying contact details for each of 
the Registered Housing Providers in Allerdale.  When made aware of maintenance 
and/or repair issues, it is requested that members ensure that the Council and the 

Page 26



 

 

relevant Registered Provider have been informed of the problem and that a 
response has been initiated. 

The general advice is for the tenant to contact their landlord directly to arrange for 
any repair issues to be addressed. However, if the tenant is not satisfied with the 
landlord’s response or if there is a serious/imminent risk to the health and safety of 
the tenant, then the Housing Enforcement Team should be informed so that the 
necessary and appropriate action can be taken to address the issues.   

Homelessness 

5.5 Cumbria County Council’s bid to the Changing Futures Funding Programme, on 
behalf of the Cumbrian Districts, was unsuccessful.  However, the process of 
assembling the bid has led to a strong commitment from all partners, including 
criminal justice and voluntary and community sectors, to redesign the existing 
services.  There is now a general recognition that statutory thresholds for services 
are not always appropriate in terms of providing support when it is most needed and 
could be most effective.  Work is ongoing to ensure that agencies work closely 
together and to improve the supported housing offer.  This could be through 
specialist provision or incentives for landlords.   

The Allerdale team continues to work hard providing accommodation for clients who 
find themselves homeless, with prevention advice and support for clients who face 
losing their homes or are in difficult situations.  

After responding to the Government’s "everyone in" campaign to accommodate 
rough sleepers during the pandemic, the team has continued to provide support 
through temporary accommodation units and local bed and breakfast 
establishments to keep rough sleepers safe.   

In April we submitted a bid for funds to the MHCLG Rough Sleeper Accommodation 
Programme.  This programme is a national initiative run by the Ministry of Housing, 
Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) which invites Councils, working 
closely with delivery partners, to submit proposals and bids for future years of the 
Rough Sleeping Accommodation Programme (RSAP).   

The bid was to provide accommodation and support for rough sleepers in 12 
supported units and was developed in collaboration with local housing providers. 
Unfortunately, the bid was unsuccessful in this funding period, however we will be 
looking to revise and submit a new bid in the next round which opens shortly. 

Within the team we are seeing some changes and saying goodbye to Jasmine 
Ritchie. Jasmine joined Allerdale as an apprentice before becoming Resilience and 
Safety Officer and we wish her well in her future career.  

Climate Change Group 

5.6 This group continues to go from strength to strength and has produced a 
comprehensive Action Plan for the Council. It has been circulated to Town and 
Parish Councils and is available to view on the Council’s website. Before the 
publication of the plan, a virtual meeting was held with stakeholders to gather 
feedback and further suggestions. 

The Action Plan is divided into seven separate themes with individual members of 
the group taking the lead on each these according to their own areas of interest and 

Page 27



 

 

expertise.  We would like to welcome new members to the group and would 
encourage all councillors to read the Action Plan and to join us in this essential 
work. 

A comprehensive course of Carbon Literacy Training is being arranged for 
members and officers across the Council.  The Climate Change Group is also 
planning to set up a small funding scheme for local green initiatives as well as an 
ideas bank for larger sustainable projects which can then be signposted to larger 
sources of funding as it becomes available. 

Elections  

5.7 Following on from the successful delivery of the elections held on 6 May 2021, the 
Electoral Services team are undertaking the huge task of the Annual Canvass. 

This year’s Annual Canvass started on 28 June 2021 when 23,208 emails were 
sent requesting information from electors.  In doing this, the Council saved the cost 
of printing and posting 16,569 paper forms.  For the remaining properties, for which 
the Council has no current email address, 32,482 paper forms will be sent on 2 
August. 

Reminders will go out 8 on September and the process will conclude on 22 
November with the publication of the new Register of Electors on 1 December. 

A by-election will take place, if contested, on Thursday 19 August 2021 to fill two 
vacancies on the parish council of Underskiddaw.  The notice of election was 
published on Thursday 15 July 2021 and the deadline to receive nominations is 
4pm on Friday 23 July 2021.  

Email newsletter 

5.8 Our email newsletter system is one year old at the end of June and has shown itself 
to be a useful means of communicating with residents on important issues. There 
are ten main topic areas and we have the ability to expand this list as required. The 
newsletters have successfully conveyed messaging on the coronavirus pandemic 
and the Council’s services.  They have also helped us to communicate effectively 
with the business community.  

In the past 12 months our subscriber base has grown from zero to just shy of 7,000 
subscribers who, between them, have subscribed to almost 26,000 newsletters. 

In total we have issued over 200 email newsletters over the past 12 months, with 
176, 856 emails having been opened at least once.  When total email ‘opens’ are 
taken into account, this figure rises to 353,798, indicating that customers are finding 
the newsletters a valuable resource which they are returning to after they have first 
opened them.  The ‘open’ rate, at just over 50%, is well above the rate enjoyed by 
the top 20% of UK councils.  On average there were 16 links in each bulletin and 
the click rate is 7.5%. 

As members will be aware, this system is also used to send out regular weekly 
updates to staff and councillors.  Further information on this service is available at: 

https://www.allerdale.gov.uk/en/email-newsletters/  

Page 28

https://www.allerdale.gov.uk/en/email-newsletters/


 

 

Nextdoor 

5.9  Allerdale Borough Council is now on Nextdoor - the newest community-based social 
media platform. Nextdoor looks and feels a little like Facebook and has many 
features such as a news stream, as well as "like" and "comment" functionality.  

However, it differs from other social media in that subscribers have to provide their 
address when they join and are limited to only joining their own local community, 
based on Ward boundaries. As an organisation, the Council can send messages to 
specific communities, a number of areas, or to subscribers throughout Allerdale. 
This will prove useful when targeting specific communities in an emergency, for 
example. But Nextdoor can also be used to engage on issues that affect a particular 
community.  The number of users is low at present but beginning to grow and we 
have seen some good examples of engagement.  You can find this service at: 

https://nextdoor.co.uk/ 

Corporate Restructure 

5.10  The informal consultation process was launched with staff on the 21 June and 
closed on the 6 July 2021.  This informal stage, is the first in a process that will 
include a formal consultation over the summer.  The restructuring process is 
expected to be completed in September 2021. 

6.0  Environmental Services Portfolio: Cllr Jim Lister  

 Waste and recycling  

6.1  On behalf of Allerdale Waste Service WebaspX have been reviewing the current 
round structure to drive collection efficiency and potential savings. Initial results look 
favourable. The next step is to refine the rounds down to individual properties to 
ensure that all residents are included. 

The Bulky Waste Collection Service has been reviewed recently. Long waiting 
times, limited numbers of collection slots and the likelihood that these two issues 
may be cause fly tipping instead of safe disposal were behind the initiative. The 
number of weekly collection slots will be increased by 20 and the towns collected on 
each day have been reorganised to ensure a more even workflow. Instead of a 4-
week waiting list we are aiming to collect in a maximum of 2 weeks. Other 
technological efficiencies are also included. 

Happily, summer carnivals and significant community sporting and social events are 
starting to resume after a yearlong absence. Allerdale Waste Services and Tivoli 
are both playing a full role in providing waste containers and litter picking and where 
possible doing this from within existing resources. 

The collection of comingled recycling has been extended to an area in the north of 
the borough to support the Council Strategy of increasing recycling. This was 
accommodated within existing resources. 

We have applied to be part of Keep Britain Tidy’s new campaign which is aimed at 
encouraging residents to produce less waste. The pilot is fully funded and will target 
three higher-wasting collection rounds in each of the partnering authorities. 
Communications will be delivered and their effectiveness will be monitored and 
evaluated to identify any changes in waste tonnages (residual and recycling), 

Page 29

https://nextdoor.co.uk/


 

 

resident perceptions around waste prevention and the resources they received, any 
differences in the effectiveness of different messages and partner feedback on the 
communications and how they could be improved. 

Allerdale Waste Services has recently launched an MOT and Car Repair Service at 
the workshop facilities at Solway House, Workington. The new business venture is 
called AWS MOT Services and is the first diversification for Allerdale Waste 
Services, providing a quality MOT and car repair service to all car owners in 
Allerdale and surrounding areas. In addition, Allerdale Waste Services has been 
awarded the contract to carry out Taxi Testing in Allerdale. This important work will 
ensure that private hire and hackney carriage Taxis are appropriately and safely 
regulated when operating in the Borough.  

Allerdale Waste Services have introduced a pro-active approach to the repair of 
broken bin lids that allows repairs to be undertaken on-site where possible rather 
than exchange. A member of the team is following the paper collections round and 
repairing bins that are out and are damaged.  This initiative has received many 
favourable comments and compliments. 

Grounds maintenance and street cleaning 

6.2 Tivoli along with Allerdale Waste Services have been a key player in Operation 
Respect the multi-agency fly tipping initiative. The first and very successful 
operation took place on the 4 June at Castles and Coasts properties in Workington. 
Further events are planned. 

 The Tivoli team have been working in partnership with Allerdale Waste Services to 
keep on top of fly tipping at bring banks in the area.  

 Tivoli are working alongside the Cumbria Tactical Visitor Management Group who 
will provide additional bins and regular collection at tourist hot spots identified by 
Tivoli. 

 Working with the Cumbria Strategic Waste Partnership the Council and our waste 
and street cleansing partners we have responded to the Government’s consultation 
exercise on the introduction of a Deposit Return Scheme and the concept of 
Extended Producer Responsibility for packaging. A final draft of our response to the 
Consistent Collection of Recycling consultation is being prepared for submission.  

Tivoli worked with community groups and individuals throughout the Borough to 
support in removing waste from Community litter picks and supplying materials i.e. 
bags and litter pickers 

They also worked with Cockermouth Civic Trust to help design and supply FOC 
signage for the - 800 Years since Cockermouth received market charter status 
event. 

Enforcement 

6.3 Targeted intelligence and complaint led high profile patrolling continues across the 
borough in areas with high instances of dog fouling, littering and fly tipping. 
Education and engagement activities have taken place including using leafletting, 
stencilling and signage in our hot spot locations. Since the last report three FPNs 
have been issued for Duty of Care for Waste transfer. We are also supporting a 
number of community volunteers with equipment and advice to ensure the amazing 

Page 30



 

 

work being delivered by residents of Allerdale can continue. Together, we can drive 
positive behaviours. 

The team have supported the Multi Agency referral for fly tipping ‘Operation 
Respect’ and were leading on behalf of Allerdale Borough Council at the recent day 
of action in Newlands Gardens, Workington. 

The team provide ongoing engagement and education to business customers in 
Allerdale in response to My Allerdale requests for service, we are working with the 
Trade Waste teams to explore new opportunities and tactics in addressing the 
issues of mismanagement of commercial waste. 

Car parking services 

6.4 Since the last portfolio report there has been a reduction in levels of pandemic 
related disruption.  In our tourist areas along the West Coast and within the National 
Park the car parks have been increasingly busy. The installation of new technology 
into the parking machines in the National Park has improved the signalling issues 
the team faced in the summer of 2020. However, in some cases, our own teams 
and partnering organisations, have reported that mobile phone technology systems 
over the Whit holiday period struggled to cope with demand on connectivity in many 
locations throughout the National Park.  This, on occasions, slowed down the speed 
at which credit card transactions could be performed, potentially resulting in a 
negative impact on a motorist’s experience. 

In addition to the improved technology, 5 new machines have been installed in 
Keswick and are awaiting commissioning. Once these machines are ready to be put 
into service the team also plan to move a smaller number of existing machine’s into 
different areas of the car parks. This will help reduce the risk of damage to 
machines from flood water at Lakeside and also help us mitigate risk linked to the 
Covid virus from parking machines that are currently located side by side. 

There is strong evidence to suggest that there has been a change in how people 
pay for their parking, it is largely linked to the pandemic, but customers are 
embracing a cashless way of paying for their parking. 

Using May 2019 as a comparison to May 2021 we can see that: 

 Cashless payments (credit card and mobile phone app) in May 2021 
highlighted a surge in increased usage of up 49% of the total transactions as 
opposed to 18% in May 2019. 

 The use of coins for the same period has fallen from 82% in May 2019 to 51% 
in May 2021. 

 Long stay car parks have a higher rate of cashless usage than the short stay 
sites where cash is still widely in use. 

To help assist motorists with their parking, the team have installed new and 
improved signage. In addition to this, new road markings continue to be installed on 
sites where it is required. 

Bereavement Services 

6.5 The new footpath at Flimby Cemetery has been installed, leading to what will 
become a small memorial garden area in the near future.   Drainage work in both 
Dearham and Harrington Road cemeteries has been completed and the Health and 

Page 31



 

 

Safety memorial inspections planned for this year are now underway.  The 
management agreement with Wigton Burial Joint Committee came into operation on 
1 April for an initial 12 month period.  The lack of burial space in Cockermouth 
Cemetery has been identified as an issue to be addressed over the next twelve 
month period in the Council Strategy Delivery Plan. 

Public realm and open spaces projects 

6.6 Central Way Underpass: Practical Completion has been achieved on the main 
public realm contract and Thomas Armstrong are now off site. Once signage has 
been installed the underpass will re-open. Artwork is in production and will be 
installed in July. 

Workington Leisure Centre: Outdoor gym/exercise area is complete. Landscaping 
works for events and activity space are largely complete but “snagging” is ongoing 
to ensure establishment of grassed areas.  

Play Areas: Improvements have been completed at Harris Park and Camp Road 
play areas, including new equipment and wet-pour safety surfacing. 

Cumbria Coastal Community Forest: An Expression of Interest document has been 
submitted for funding for this project. 

Northside non-statutory allotments/Community Plots and Siddick Pond: The 
demolition and site clearance contract has started and is scheduled to be complete 
by the end of July. The landscaping contract will commence immediately following 
completion of the site clearance works.  A planning application has been submitted 
for major scheme to create new wetland habitat around the brackish pond. 

Fairy Path reinstatement, Maryport Seabrows: Work has been completed and ideas 
for improvements to Mote Hill have been scoped. Opportunities to fund the 
schemes are under consideration. 

7.0  Leisure and Tourism Portfolio: Cllr Anthony Markley 

Cycling Promotion  

7.1 The official opening of the Allonby-Silloth cycleway took place on 17 June.  The 
project was managed by Allerdale Borough Council on behalf of the Silloth on 
Solway Coastal Community Team. We have commissioned a short promotional 
video which showcases the route and the fantastic opportunities for cycling on the 
Solway Coast, you can see it at the following link. https://youtu.be/7Ko4w119xt0  

As part of the opening, the Council will also officially launch the very first Solway 
Coast Cycling Festival – taking place on Silloth Green on 11 September 2021, just 
a day after the Tour of Britain has been through Cumbria. This family-friendly event 
will showcase the Solway Coast as a fantastic cycling destination and encourage 
people to incorporate cycling as part of a healthy and environmentally friendly 
lifestyle.  

Lowther Arms  

7.2 As part of the opening of the Allonby-Silloth cycleway we were able to publicise the 
reopening of the Lowther Arms by the Lowther Arms Community Project in advance 
of the official reopening on 26 June. This community owned pub in on the route of 

Page 32

https://eur01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fyoutu.be%2F7Ko4w119xt0&data=04%7C01%7Calex.fitzgerald%40allerdale.gov.uk%7Cf46d0919039f4b79e8a608d942d484a0%7Ca10953b672334b77b858e13f522d29c8%7C0%7C0%7C637614302780188471%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=aa%2Fgj0ZytK%2FMeo1GvoG%2Fxm%2F3Hs5DbfBS2%2B%2BnRzABBtg%3D&reserved=0


 

 

the cycleway and as well as being a valuable asset for the community is one of 
many attractions along the cycle route. 

Fishing Faces Project 

7.3 The Council has commissioned the Solway Firth Partnership to help deliver a 
'Fishing Faces' Project for the Solway Coast. This builds a similar project produced 
for the Scottish side of the Solway Firth and aims to use the fishing heritage of the 
area to support and promote tourism in the area. Part of the commission includes 
the production of a promotional video and filming for this has started. 

Tourism Breakfast Briefing  

7.4 The latest in our series of breakfast briefings took place on 15 May. This was the 
second online breakfast briefing hosted jointly with Copeland Council and was well 
received by those attending. We will continue to host these meetings, which are a 
useful way of helping to support tourism businesses by providing information and 
advice. In addition, we are looking into hosting a tourism conference later in the 
year to provide another forum for local tourism businesses to share information and 
experience. 

Cumbria Tourism 

7.5 I am pleased to have been nominated by the Cumbria District Leaders to be the 
District Council representative on the Board of Cumbria Tourism and look forward to 
representing the interests of the District Council's in promoting Cumbria as a 
tourism destination. 

Visitor Management 

7.6 We welcome the return of visitors to Allerdale following the easing of restrictions, 
but recognise, that in some circumstances, this is placing pressure on local 
residents and the environment. We are working with partners through the Visitor 
Management Group to encourage responsible behaviour by visitors and address 
issue as they arise. 

Creative People and Places 

7.7 Allerdale are a partner in the West Cumbria CPP consortium and an application for 
over £800k has now been submitted to the Arts Council CPP Fund through the 
consortium for a 3 year community arts program. The outcome of the bid should be 
known in November. 

Leisure Centres 

7.8 All 4 leisure centres are now open and are steadily re-growing their memberships 
and activities. The target is to be back at pre-Covid figures by January 2022. A 
range of targeted summer activities will be delivered at Workington and the Wave 
for young people eligible for free school meals.  

Members will be aware that a difficult decision has recently been taken to close 
Keswick Pool (although the gym remains open). It is clear from the reaction to the 
news the pool is to close permanently that there is a lot of interest in this issue.  The 
Council is keen to hear people’s views and have already committed to working with 
the Friends of Keswick Pool as well as reaching out to other key groups.  It is 

Page 33



 

 

important that we speak to as many people as possible over the coming weeks and 
months.  

A leisure options appraisal of delivery models for leisure services is underway, 
looking at what future leisure provision could look like from March 2024 when the 
current contract with GLL is due to come to an end. 

Sports development 

7.9 SIIF Sports Development Grants: A new round has opened for this year’s allocation 
of £75,000, where clubs can apply for up to £10,000. Submissions will be reviewed 
in July.   

Allerdale Playing Pitch and Outdoor Sport Strategy: The assessment report has 
been signed off by the steering group and draft strategy and action plan has been 
developed and is awaiting approval from the steering group. Final version to be 
approved in August.  

Physical activity on Referral Scheme (PARS): The funded pilot is back up and 
running in partnership with the local Integrated Care Communities, working with 
those at risk of health problems through being inactive in the Workington, 
Wigton/Solway and Maryport areas.  

Lakesman Triathlon 

7.10 It was fantastic to see the return of the Lakesman event to Allerdale recently.  The 
event took place in June in Keswick with a bike route across West Cumbria.  
Around 780 athletes took part in this great event. The economic findings report has 
estimated the total value of the event to the local economy at £2.27m.  

8.0  Customer Experience and Innovation Portfolio: Cllr Alan Pitcher 

Customer Service  

8.1 As expected, April was a very busy month with annual billing creating additional 
customer demand which had the team speaking to over 8,000 telephone 
customers. The increased number of calls had an impact on telephone queue times 
for customers, which averaged 104 seconds during the month. Our telephone call-
back service was well used with 1,700 customers choosing to leave their number 
and receive a call back from our advisors within 30 minutes. 30% of the calls in April 
were council tax related, 25% general enquiries and 17% waste enquiries. The 
remaining 28% were spread across other council services. 

May however, brought customer telephone enquiries back to expected normal 
levels for the month with 6,700 calls and an average wait time of just 47 seconds for 
the month. 

Face to face appointments were available from 12 April for customers who needed 
to visit our Wigton and Workington offices, though demand has remained low 
with just 10 appointments booked by the end of May. Appointments will be available 
at Keswick, Maryport and Cockermouth from 19 July in line with the lifting 
of restrictions.  

On the digital front our on-line services continue to be popular with customers who 
use them 24 hours a day 7 days a week to able to report issues, apply for grants, 

Page 34



 

 

make bin enquiries, renew parking permits, make payments, view and submit 
planning applications and check their council tax accounts as well as using the 
website to access a wide range of council information.  

We have had some staffing changes recently and have said goodbye to two of our 
experienced Customer Service Advisors with Annette Minshaw moving to 
Enforcement and Beverly Taylor leaving the organisation. We take the opportunity 
to welcome Maria McCarron, who has started training to become an advisor.  

Customer Accounts  

8.2 The Customer Accounts team delivered outstanding performance again, not only 
dealing with business as usual and annual billing, but continuing to process the 
Covid-19 related grants. We saw a last-minute surge in business grant applications 
as deadlines for applications approached and there was good news as the test and 
trace support payments scheme managed by the team, was extended until 30 
September.    

The team continue to meet the business targets for processing Housing Benefit and 
Council Tax Reduction Scheme new claims and change of circumstances and I am 
pleased to say that both Council Tax and NNDR collection rates are up from last 
year.  

Another goodbye and a thank you to a longstanding member of the Customer 
Accounts team as Mike Toner takes retirement to spend more time fell walking and 
supporting the Reds!  

ICT – Anytime, Anywhere, Any-device 

8.3 The technology team continue their work across several initiatives to further 
enhance and deploy the ‘AAA Strategy’ (Anytime, Anywhere, Any-device), therefore 
enabling a fully mobile and agile organisation. 

This includes preparing a new corporate platform that will enable secure AAA 
working, providing access to traditional intranet, social intranet, applications, 
services and data all from within a single user-friendly interface.  

Pest Control and Bulky Waste environments have been migrated into the 
MyAllerdale solution, allowing us to reduce licensing and hardware costs, while 
enabling improved customer experience and improved efficiencies through anytime 
anywhere access for staff. 

Data Centre Infrastructure 

8.4 The new data centre solution has been implemented and migration of services has 
started. The new solution, which can almost fit under a desk, replaces a room full of 
hardware; resulting in reductions in electrical usage, cooling requirements and 
environmental impact. 

Cyber Security 

8.5 We are continuously improving the security of the Council’s architectures, especially 
with the move to hybrid working. Recent attempted cyber-attacks also accelerated 
our plans to introduce geolocation security and multifactor authentication services, 
which have been successfully deployed. 

Page 35



 

 

Digitisation 

8.6 A project is underway to establish a comprehensive record of the Council’s assets, 
deeds, contracts and liabilities. A large proportion of the Council’s records remain in 
paper form alone; this creates a number of risks in terms of records being 
permanently lost or destroyed and conflicts with the Authority’s aims of agile 
working. The project is progressing well and will utilise the Government’s Kickstart 
scheme for the additional resource required to undertake scanning of the 
documents, creating a new work opportunity for a local young person. 

Enterprise Resource Planning System 

8.7 We are on track with our project to implement the new Enterprise Resource 
Planning (ERP) system, which will provide integrated applications to manage the 
business and offer greater opportunities to transform back office functions in 
Finance, Payroll and HR. The project team has agreed an approach for the 
migration of data from the outgoing Total Finance system to the new system with 
TechnologyOne. We also commenced departmental workshops in June to allow for 
the application to be fully configured to Allerdale’s requirements, with those 
workshops due to be completed by the end of July in accordance with the project 
plan. 

Resilience  

8.8 The Emergency Planning and Corporate Health and Safety team worked closely 
with the elections team to ensure delivery of Covid-safe elections from the initial 
planning stages through to Election Day and the counts, carrying out risk 
assessments on all aspects of the election process and keeping voters and staff 
safe.  

On the emergency planning front, we recently took part in a multi-agency 
emergency planning exercise as part of a national counter terrorism policing 
initiative. The team continue to work closely with partners as part of the Cumbria 
Local Resilience Forum who will be working with the team to review the Allerdale 
crisis management response to Covid-19 later this month. 

Allerdale House and New Ways of Working 

8.9 In the face of the unprecedented changes brought on by Covid-19, the Programme 
Office has been working with all staff and managers to look at new ways of working 
to provide officers, councillors and users of Council services with more flexible ways 
of providing services to customers and working together, which fits with modern 
working practices. Plans include the roll out of hybrid working arrangements with 
scope for the majority of officers to work from any location and an online booking 
system for teams and individuals to reserve desks, flexible workspaces and meeting 
rooms in Allerdale House. AV equipment will be installed in meeting rooms to 
facilitate hybrid meetings and we will introduce hot desks and informal collaborative 
spaces. The implementation of all plans will follow the Government guidance on 
social distancing and the roadmap for easing of Covid-19 restrictions. 

Allerdale & Lakeland Lottery 

8.10 Our community lottery recently celebrated its first sixth months and continues to go 
from strength to strength. We’re now hoping to build on this success by 

Page 36



 

 

encouraging more organisations to sign up and more people to buy tickets and 
show their support for local good causes. It was set up late last year to help 
community groups and charitable organisations raise much-needed financial 
support and already the lottery paid out £18,000 to local causes and is on course to 
raise over £45,000 in its first year. It has around 770 players who have bought more 
than 1,400 tickets playing for 71 causes from nature conservation groups, school 
friend groups, scout groups, theatres and heritage charities, as well as sports clubs 
and even a chess club. It costs just £1 per game to play and participants could win 
up to £25,000 as part of the weekly draw. We have already had a few players win 
£250 and even a player win a £2,000 prize in June. Find out more 
at https://www.allerdalelottery.com/.  

Allerdale Local Focus Hub 

8.11 The Allerdale Local Focus Hub (ALFH) team are in Allerdale House alongside the 
Child Centred Policing Team, Licensing and Housing Options.  

Monthly place-based newsletters are being published by Cumbria Constabulary and 
we encourage all residents to subscribe to stay up to date with all ALFH activity. We 
are experiencing an increase in the volume of referrals, the ALFH have received 80 
referrals so far in 2021 (compared to 122 for the whole of 2020) - referrals range 
from anti-social behaviour, neighbour disputes, noise complaints, drug issues and 
complex location based problems. It is great to see referrals coming in from a wide 
range of partners.  

The ALFH Manager is leading on a youth violence project across West Cumbria, 
and we received 837 survey responses from children aged 11-16 in four schools 
across Allerdale and Copeland. Due to the high level of engagement from our 
young people and the established partnership framework we have in place we have 
successfully received a funded place on the National Get Connected programme. 
The Strategic and Operational delivery groups are working through a series of fact 
finding workshops and the outcomes will inform a delivery plan to support young 
people at risk of youth violence in West Cumbria. 

Operation Respect – the multi-agency response to fly tipping in Allerdale has 
gained momentum, our partners Castles and Coasts led on a day of action in 
Newlands Gardens, Workington supported by the Police, Fire Service, Allerdale 
Borough Council, Tivoli, Allerdale Waste Services, residents and even Border TV. 
This referral has a huge scheme of work planned over the next three to six months 
and our aim is to deliver a Cleaner, Greener Allerdale for everyone. 

The ALFH have worked closely with the OPCC on the Safer Streets funding bid, St 
Michaels were successful in achieving a funding award of over £311,000. This is 
absolutely amazing for our area, the ALFH Manager will be responsible for 
supporting the Officers in delivering the activity in the St Michaels community. 

9.0  Finance and Legal Portfolio: Cllr Colin Sharpe 

2020-21 Financial Year Close-down and Statement of Accounts 

9.1 Over the course of the last quarter the Financial Services Team have been working 
hard to close-down the 2020-21 accounts, prepare the revenue and capital outturn 

Page 37

https://eur01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Flnks.gd%2Fl%2FeyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMDIsInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsImJ1bGxldGluX2lkIjoiMjAyMTA2MDQuNDE0ODQ4ODEiLCJ1cmwiOiJodHRwczovL3d3dy5hbGxlcmRhbGVsb3R0ZXJ5LmNvbS8ifQ.5cgq0WGwLbpqX7mUpJSNEKwJFYKDB0fwjLqFji8TOYg%2Fs%2F1186098371%2Fbr%2F107462305353-l&data=04%7C01%7Cbrendan.carlin%40allerdale.gov.uk%7C382854f6fa4842d65b5108d9275f0d4d%7Ca10953b672334b77b858e13f522d29c8%7C0%7C0%7C637584111461257327%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=Q%2FmDxBWuw8vLiuhrLqmbCLf019B%2B46Fw2YoBDEomua0%3D&reserved=0


 

 

reports for 2020-21 and complete the tasks necessary to delivering the 2020-21 
Statement of Accounts, in line with the statutory timetable.  

For 2020-21 the statutory timetable requires the Authority to publish its unaudited 
statement of accounts by 31 July 2021 and its audited statements by 30 
September.   

This has also been the first financial year end for Allerdale Waste Services Ltd, and 
the Financial Services Team have been involved in producing the company’s 
accounts and working with the company’s external auditors, ahead of the company 
statutory filing date of 19 August 2021.   

 Covid-19 financial monitoring 

9.2 The Financial Services Team have continued to monitor the financial impact of 
Covid-19 and within the last quarter have: 

 maintained the processing of grant payments to businesses for government 
schemes in response to the Covid-19 pandemic and preparation of weekly 
monitoring returns to government in respect of these grant payments, 

 prepared monthly returns to government in respect of Covid-19 local authority 
financial management information, 

 submitted the third government claim in respect of the Sales, Fees and Charges 
income compensation scheme, and 

 continued to support Service Managers in monitoring the use of Covid-19 
specific grants, received by the Authority.  

 Enterprise Resource Planning system (ERP) 

9.3 The work in relation to the Council’s new ERP system is progressing and members 
of the team have attended regular Project Team meetings. Within the last quarter, 
finance staff have also attended several meetings with the supplier, to work on the 
detailed specification of the new system.    

Training 

9.4 We are pleased to share that a member of the Financial Services Team has 
achieved their Payroll Technician Certificate, with the Chartered Institute of Payroll 
Professionals. 

 Audit 

9.5 The Audit Committee meeting on 29 June 2021 included the Year End Report and 
annual audit opinion as well as performance against the 2020/21 plan, assurance 
and consultancy activities, fraud work and agreed action follow up.  

The National Fraud Initiative (NFI) is a data matching exercise conducted by the 
Cabinet Office which requires annual data to support the early prevention and 
detection of fraud in organisations. This year saw the need for additional data sets 
for a separate exercise and also grant information adding additional work load to 
the responsible officers. The team worked hard to submit their data sets. Teams 
including audit are now working through their matches for the October completion 
deadline.  

Page 38



 

 

The Assurance Risk and Audit (ARA) Officer has been supporting the grants teams 
with fraud work. Any suspected fraud identified is forwarded to all necessary 
parties. The reduction in resource continues within the audit department and the 
21/22 Audit Plan was set accordingly.  

The ARA Officer also supports the ERP team with assurance and risk in relation to 
the implementation of the Council’s planned ERP System (to replace the current 
finance system) and attends the Project Team meetings. 

Food and Occupational Health  

9.6 Since the Government announced the roadmap out of lockdown for England on 
February 2021 and introduced new Regulations to support the roadmap (The 
Health Protection (Coronavirus, Restrictions) (Steps) (England) Regulations 2021), 
the Food and Occupational Health team have focused on the four parts of the plan 
to help support businesses reopening and continue to support those who have 
remained open during lockdown. 

The team’s work is to help businesses to open safely by providing support and 
guidance where necessary but also to deal with Covid-19 complaints and request 
for Covid-19 advice. Compliance is checked by a variety of means i.e. telephone 
calls, emails, visits and monitoring checks. Overall, compliance by businesses is 
good and interactions by officers have been with advice/guidance rather than 
having to resort to legal action.  

An increasing part of the work is working with event organisers to support them in 
provide a Covid-secure event. There is a multi-agency approach to supporting 
these events through the county wide Enforcement group. The team continues to 
work closely with the Police, other agencies and neighbouring local authorities to 
provide a co-ordinated approach and effective use of resources. 

Covid-19 enforcement and compliance work continues to be the main aspect of the 
Food and Occupational Health team. However, as businesses have reopened, the 
pressure is on the team to return to routine food and occupational health work. 

10.0  Delivery arrangements 

10.1 Not applicable to this report. 

11.0 Implications and Impact 

11.1 Contribution to Council Strategy Priorities, Outputs and Outcomes  

This is an update on Portfolio activity in line with the Council’s priorities as set out in 
the Council Strategy 2020-2030. 

11.2 Finance/Resource implications 

 None directly associated with this report. 

11.3 Legal and governance implications  

 None directly associated with this report. 

11.4 Risk analysis 

 Not applicable to this report. 

Page 39



 

 

11.5 Increasing satisfaction and service 

None directly associated with this report.   

11.6 Equality impacts 

 None directly associated with this report. 

11.7 Health and Safety impacts 

None directly associated with this report. 

11.8 Health, wellbeing and community safety impacts 

None directly associated with this report. 

11.9 Environmental/sustainability impacts 

None directly associated with this report. 

11.10 Other significant implications 

None. 
 

Appendices attached to this report 

 

Appendix number Title of appendix 

None  

 

Background documents available 

 

Name of background document Where it is available 

None  

 
 
Report author(s) and contact officer(s): 
Alex FitzGerald 
Policy Manager (Corporate, Performance and Information) 
alex.fitzgerald@allerdale.gov.uk 
01900 702719  

Page 40



At a meeting of the Executive held in Zoom Virtual Meeting on Wednesday 13 January 
2021 at 4.00 pm 
 
Members 
 
Councillor Mike Johnson (Chair)  
Councillor John Cook Councillor Marion Fitzgerald 
Councillor Jim Lister Councillor Anthony Markley 
Councillor Alan Pitcher  
 
 
Staff Present 
 
B Carlin, A Gilbert, N Hardy, K Kerrigan, C Nicholson, G Roach, A Seekings, S Sewell 
and P Wood 
 
259. Minutes  

 
The minutes of the meeting held on 25 November 2020 were agreed as a 
correct record. 
 

260. Declaration of Interests  
 
8. Allerdale Investment Partnership - Business Plan 2020-25. 

Andrew Seekings; Other Registrable Interest; Due to his previous role on 
the Allerdale Investment Partnership. 

 
8. Allerdale Investment Partnership - Business Plan 2020-25. 

Councillor Marion Fitzgerald; Other Registrable Interest; Due to being a 
Board member of the Allerdale Investment Partnership. 

 
8. Allerdale Investment Partnership - Business Plan 2020-25. 

Councillor Mike Johnson; Other Registrable Interest; Due to being a 
Board member of the Allerdale Investment Partnership. 

 
Referring to agenda item 7 Councillor Alan Pitcher declared that he had been a 
member of the Task and Finish group for a short period of the review prior to 
becoming a member of the Executive. 
 

261. Questions  
 
None received. 
 

262. Members' Announcements  
 
None received. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 41

Agenda Item 10



263. Allerdale Borough Council  Household Waste and Recycling Policy  
 
The subject of the decision 
 
The Head of Financial Services submitted a report which sought member’s 
approval of a Household Waste and Recycling Policy. 
 
Councillor T Markley moved the recommendation as per the report; this was 
seconded by Councillor M Fitzgerald. The motion was unanimously agreed. 
 
Alternative options considered 
 
Not to approve the Policy. 
 
The reason for the decision 
 
To approve the Council’s Household Waste and Recycling Policy, to ensure a 
consistent approach to household waste and recycling collection within the 
Borough of Allerdale, working towards achieving the objectives set out in the 
Council Strategy. 
 
The decision 
 
Resolved 
 
That the Household Waste and Recycling Policy as presented at Appendix 1 of 
the report be approved. 

 Resolved - 
 
“That under Section 100A 4 of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be 
excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds 
that they may involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
paragraph 3 of part 1 of Schedule 12 A of the Act.” 

  
264. Report from the Overview and Scrutiny Committee - Report of the 

Procurement Task and Finish Group  
 
The subject of the decision 
 
The Co-Chairs of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee submitted a report to 
members to present findings and a recommendation from a recent Task and 
Finish Group set up to examine the procurement processes being used by the 
Council, with a focus on the experiences and learnings from the Community 
Services procurements. 
 
Councillor M Johnson thanked members of the Task and Finish Group and 
Scrutiny Committee for completing the piece of work and moved the 
recommendations as per the report. This was seconded by Councillor M 
Fitzgerald.  
The motion was unanimously agreed. 
 
 

Page 42



Alternative options considered 
 
None. 
 
The reason for the decision 
 
At its meeting on 27 November 2020 the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
agreed to submit the report to the Executive. 
 
The decision 
 
Resolved 
 
That the report and recommendations for adoption and implementation be 
agreed. 

  
Councillors M Fitzgerald and M Johnson left the meeting for the 
following item   

  
 Councillor A Pitcher assumed the position of Chair   
  
265. Allerdale Investment Partnership - Business Plan 2020-25  

 
The subject of the decision 
 
The Chief Executive submitted a report which sought member’s approval of a 
draft Allerdale Investment Plan (AIP) Business Plan 2020-25 and to approve 
changes to the management agreement and the role of Officers supporting the 
AIP. 
 
Councillor A Pitcher moved the recommendations as per the report; this was 
seconded by Councillor J Cook. The motion was unanimously agreed. 
 
Alternative options considered 
 
Not to approve the draft Allerdale Investment Plan Business Plan 2020-25. 
 
The reason for the decision 
 
The AIP had provided the Council with their 2020-25 draft Business Plan 
(Investment Plan) (appendix 1) and the plan required agreement by Executive. 
The AIP was also proposing changes to the management agreement and the 
Council also needed to change the roles of Officers supporting the AIP to reflect 
the changes to roles as agreed by the Chief Officer Employment Panel on 21 
December 2020. 
 
The decision 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 43



Resolved 
 
That – 
 

1. It be agreed that the Chief Executive finalised and agreed the changes to 
the draft AIP Business Plan (Investment Plan) (appendix 1) and 
associated documents to allow the AIP to continue to support the 
regeneration of Allerdale, create jobs and make use of surplus ABC 
assets 
 

2. It be agreed that the Chief Executive finalised and agreed the changes to 
the Management Agreement, in consultation with the Monitoring Officer 
and Section 151 Officer 

 
3. It be agreed that the Chief Executive finalised and agreed the exclusivity 

agreements and that the disposal of future sites (including two sites 
where plans were currently being developed) were disposed of in 
accordance with the Council’s Asset Acquisition and Disposal Policy and 
in accordance with the relevant legislation 

 
4. The changes to the Council’s role in management team and members 

matters as set out in sections 4.8 and 5.3 of the report be approved. 
  

Councillors M Fitzgerald and M Johnson re-joined the meeting   
  

 
The meeting closed at 4.36 pm 
 

Page 44



At a meeting of the Executive held on Zoom Virtual Meeting on Wednesday 24 
February 2021 at 4.00 pm 
 
Members 
 
Councillor Mike Johnson (Chair)  
Councillor John Cook Councillor Marion Fitzgerald 
Councillor Jim Lister Councillor Anthony Markley 
Councillor Alan Pitcher  
 
 
Staff Present 
 
B Carlin, A Gilbert, N Hardy, J Irving, L Jardine, K Kerrigan, C Nicholson, G Roach, 
A Seekings and S Sewell 
 
Also Present 
 
D Coyle and A Lane 
 
316. Minutes  

 
The minutes of the meeting held on 13 January 2021 were agreed as a correct 
record. 
 

317. Declaration of Interests  
 
7. Budget 2021-22 - Revenue and Capital. 

Councillor Alan Pitcher; Other Registrable Interest; Due to his position of 
Honorary President of the Wigton Baths Trust. 
 

318. Questions  
 
None received. 
 

319. Members' Announcements  
 
None received. 
 

320. Quarter 3 Finance Report April to December 2020  
 
The subject of the decision 
 
The Head of Financial Services submitted a report which sought to inform 
Members of the Council’s financial performance against budget for the period 
April to December 2020 along with the forecast position to 31 March 2021. 
 
Members noted the headline messages at the end of quarter 3 2020/21, being: 

 Revenue Budget 

Page 45



(i) Expenditure from the revenue budget, excluding projects 
funded from earmarked reserves, was forecast to exceed 
budget by £369k  

(ii) After taking into account the additional Covid-19 funding 
received of £1,594k, plus an estimate of the amount to be 
received under the income gurantee scheme of £1,565k, the 
projected outturn position would require a contribution of £55k 
from General Fund reserves to meet the forecast net overspend 

 Earmarked Reserves Budget 

(iii) It was anticipated that £80k of the budgeted use of earmarked 
reserves would now be spent in future financial years and had 
therefore been reprofiled within the forecast spend of 
earmarked reserves in 2020-21 

(iv) After accounting for the reprofiling, a saving of £2k was 
expected 

 Capital Budget 

(v) Expenditure from the capital budget was forecast to underspend 
by £7.945m (before carry forwards); £341k net of anticipated 
carry forward requests  

Treasury Management 

(vi) Treasury Management activities were carried out in accordance 
with the Councils treasury management and investment 
strategies and within the limits established by the approved 
treasury and prudential indicators for 2020-21 

(vii) No new external borrowing was undertaken. 
 
Councillor J Lister moved the recommendation. This was seconded by 
Councillor A Pitcher. The recommendation was unanimously agreed. 
 
Alternative options considered 
 
None 
 
The reason for the decision 
 
To inform Members of the Council’s financial performance against budget for 
the period April to December 2020 along with the forecast position to 31 March 
2021. 
 
The decision 
 
Resolved 
 
That the report be noted. 
 
 
 
 

Page 46



321. Budget 2021-22 - Revenue and Capital  
 
The subject of the decision 
 
The Head of Financial Services submitted a report which sought to present to 
Members the draft revenue and capital budget and the formal advice of the 
chief financial officer on the robustness of the estimates included in the budget 
and the adequacy of the reserves which supported the Council’s budgetary 
plans. 
 
The Executive thanked all those involved in setting the balanced budget. 
 
Councillor J Lister moved the recommendations contained within the report. 
This was seconded by Councillor M Fitzgerald. The recommendations were 
unanimously agreed. 
 
Alternative options considered 
 
None 
 
The reason for the decision 
 
The Council’s statutory requirement to approve a balanced budget. 
 
The decision 
 
Recommended 
 
That Council be requested to agree that –  
 

(i) The total planned revenue expenditure be £16,092,480 including parish 
precepts of £2,567,162  

(ii) £15,879,831 be approved as the Council’s net budget requirement for 
2021-22  

(iii) Allerdale’s share of council tax be increased by £5 on band D Properties, 
with proportionate increases being applied to properties in other 
council tax bands 

(iv) No changes be made to the Council’s Council Tax Reduction discount 
scheme and that the current scheme remains in place for 2021-22 

(v) The revenue estimates as approved be used in the calculation of the 
basic amount of tax under Section 31 of the Local Government 
Finance Act 1992 

(vi) The minimum level of non-earmarked general fund balances be set at 
£2.7m and that no maximum level be set 

(vii) The three-year capital budget (2021-22 to 2023-24) of £44,285,072 
(comprising £13,330,379 in 2021-22, £19,109,427 in 2022-23 and 
£11,845,266 in 2023-24) be approved 

(viii) The proposed three-year capital budget for 2021-22 be financed as 
follows:  
• grants and contributions ……..£42,932,461  
• borrowing………………...…….£1,042,026  
• capital receipts …………………..£310,585  

Page 47



(ix) That the revision of the 2020-21 capital budget from £11,628,748 to 
£11,792,253 is approved. 
 

322. Capital Investment Strategy 2021-22  
 
The subject of the decision 
 
The Chief Officer Assets and S151 Officer submitted a report which asked 
members to approve the authorities Capital Investment Strategy for 2021-22. 
 
Councillor J Lister moved the recommendation as per the report; this was 
seconded by Councillor T Markley. The motion was unanimously agreed. 
 
Alternative options considered 
 
Not to agree the Capital Investment Strategy. 
 
The reason for the decision 
 
The Strategy defined at the highest level how the capital programme was to be 
determined, identified the issues and options that influence capital spending 
and set out how the resources and capital programme would be managed. 
 
The decision 
 
Recommended 
 
That Council be requested to agree that the Capital Investment Strategy as set 
out in Appendix A be approved. 
 

323. Quarter 3 Performance Report 2020/21  
 
The subject of the decision 
 
The Policy Manager (Corporate, Performance and Information) submitted a 
report to advise Members on the Council’s performance at the end of quarter 
three 2020/21, covering the period from 1 October to 31 December 2020. 
 
Members considered and noted the progress made against each of the key 
projects and activities set out in the Corporate Business Plan. 
 
The report contained 39 projects/activities and 40 key performance indicators. 
Of the projects/activities 1 was marked as complete, 34 were on target and 4 
had concerns over their deadlines or outputs being achieved. Of the listed KPIs 
24 were reported on the RAG report, 14 were on target, 7 had concerns on their 
target being achieved and 3 had significant concerns. 
 
Councillor M Fitzgerald moved the recommendation; this was seconded by 
Councillor T Markley. The recommendation was unanimously agreed. 
 
 
 

Page 48



Alternative options considered 
 
None 
 
The reason for the decision 
 
To advise members of progress on the Corporate Business Plan 
priorities/activities and KPIs at the end of quarter three 2020/21. 
 
The decision 
 
Resolved 
 
That the report be noted. 
 

324. Cumbria Coastal Strategy  
 
The subject of the decision 
 
The Building Surveyor submitted a report which sought to advise members on 
the progress of the Cumbrian Coastal Strategy and to ensure development of 
the strategy for the future management of the Allerdale coast. 
 
Doug Coyle and Anthony Lane from Flood & Development Management, 
Cumbria County Council attended the meeting to provide some background to 
the work. 
 
Councillor T Markley moved the recommendation; this was seconded by 
Councillor J Cook. The motion was unanimously agreed. 
 
Alternative options considered 
 
Not to endorse the Strategy. 
 
The reason for the decision 
 
To endorse the Strategy as a plan that sets out how the risks relating to coastal 
flooding and erosion along the coastline would be managed over the next 
century. The Strategy would feed in to the Councils Local Plan and area based 
tactical plans for coastal management. 
 
The decision 
 
Resolved 
 
That the Cumbria Coastal Strategy be endorsed by Allerdale Borough Council. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 49



325. Resilient Communities Strategy  
 
The subject of the decision 
 
The Assistant Chief Executive (Policy, Performance and Economic Strategy) 
submitted a report which asked members to approve the Resilient Communities 
Strategy. 
 
Councillor M Fitzgerald moved the recommendation; this was seconded by 
Councillor A Pitcher. The motion was unanimously agreed.  
 
Alternative options considered 
 
Not to approve the draft Strategy. 
 
The reason for the decision 
 
A Resilient Communities Strategy had been developed to sit under the Council 
Strategy, to set out how the Council could support its community’s right across 
the district, helping them become more adaptable and resilient. 
 
The decision 
 
Resolved 
 
That the draft Resilient Communities Strategy, as presented at Appendix A of 
the report, be approved. 
 

326. Workington Town Centre Supplementary Planning Document  
 
The subject of the decision 
 
The Assistant Chief Executive (Policy, Strategy and Performance) submitted a 
report which asked members to consider and adopt the Workington Town 
Centre Supplementary Planning Document (SPD). 
 
The SPD was to provide additional planning guidance to support the delivery 
and implementation of the policies and site allocations in a Local Plan. 
 
Councillor M Fitzgerald moved the recommendation; this was seconded by 
Councillor T Markley. The motion was unanimously agreed. 
 
Alternative options considered 
 
Not to approve a Supplementary Planning Document. 
 
The reason for the decision 
 
Once adopted by the Council, the SPD would be a material consideration when 
deciding development proposals in the Workington Town Centre. 
 
 

Page 50



The decision 
 
Resolved 
 
That the Workington Town Supplementary Planning Document, as set out in 
Appendix 1 of the report, be approved. 
 

327. Scrap Metal Dealers' Act  
 
The subject of the decision 
 
The Senior Licensing and Compliance Officer submitted a report which asked 
members to approve a review of the fees and charges for Scrap Metal Dealers 
and to amend the delegated powers in line with legislation. 
 
Councillor J Lister moved the recommendations as per the report; this was 
seconded by Councillor M Fitzgerald. The motion was unanimously agreed. 
 
Alternative options considered 
 
Not to review the fees and charges. 
 
The reason for the decision 
 
To review the fees and charges that had been in place since 2013. 
 
The decision 
 
Resolved 
 
That – 
 

1. Fees and charges be set as follows: 
 

Licence Type Part A fee Part B fee Total Fee 
(rounded) 

    

Site (new) 293.45 0.00 293.00 

Site (renewal) 293.45 0.00 293.00 

Site (variation) 170.99 N/A 171.00 

Collector (new) 293.43 0.00 293.00 

Collector 
(renewal) 

293.43 0.00 293.00 

Collector 
(variation) 

171.39 N/A 171.00 

Duplicate (site or 
collector) 

9.07 N/A 9.00 

 
2. The Scheme of Delegation be amended as follows: 

 
a) delegate power to determine (including the imposition of conditions) 

all types of applications regarding Site Licences and Collectors 

Page 51



Licences (where no objection is made) to either of the following: 
Head of Governance, Legal and Licensing Manager, Senior 
Licensing and Compliance Officer and/or the Licensing and 
Compliance Officer; 

b) delegate power to determine (including imposition of conditions) all 
types of applications regarding Site Licences and Collectors 
Licences (where an objection is made) to the Portfolio Holder for 
Legal and Finance, Head of Governance and/or Legal and 
Licensing Manager acting together; 

c) delegate power to refuse Site Licences and Collectors Licences to 
the Portfolio Holder for Legal and Finance, Head of Governance 
and/or Legal and Licensing Manager acting together; 

d) delegate power to revoke Site Licences and Collectors Licences to 
either of the following: Head of Governance, Legal and Licensing 
Manager, Senior Licensing and Compliance Officer and/or 
Licensing and Compliance Officer   and; 

e) delegate power to institute, defend or participate in any action or 
legal proceedings in respect of any matter relating to the 2013 Act 
(including but not limited to the service of any notice or order, the 
exercise of any power of entry or inspection; the commencement of 
a prosecution for any offence under the 2013 Act or the defence of 
any appeal against a decision of the Council made under the 2013 
Act) in any case where the Head of Governance considers that 
such action is necessary to protect or progress the Council’s 
interest, to the Head of Governance and/or the Legal and Licensing 
Manager. 

 
The meeting closed at 5.17 pm 
 

Page 52



At a meeting of the Executive held in Zoom Virtual Meeting on Wednesday 24 March 
2021 at 4.00 pm 
 
Members 
 
Councillor Mike Johnson (Chair)  
Councillor John Cook Councillor Marion Fitzgerald 
Councillor Jim Lister Councillor Anthony Markley 
Councillor Alan Pitcher  
  
 
Staff Present 
 
B Carlin, A Gilbert, N Hardy, L Jardine, K Kerrigan, C Nicholson, G Roach, A Seekings, 
S Sewell, G Wilson and P Wood 
 
 
374. Minutes  

 
The minutes of the meeting held on 24 February 2021 were agreed as a correct 
record. 
 

375. Declaration of Interests  
 
None declared. 
 

376. Questions  
 
None received. 
 

377. Members' Announcements  
 
None received. 
 

378. Local Government Reorganisation - Consultation Response  
 
The subject of the decision 
 
The Assistant Chief Executive (Policy, Performance and Economic Strategy) 
submitted a report which sought to provide members with an update on the 
Local Government Reorganisation in Cumbria and requested members to agree 
a process for wider engagement as set out in the report. 
 
It was noted the deadline for a response to the Governments consultation on 
the four proposals submitted by the Cumbrian authorities was 19 April 2021. In 
line with the Councils decision making processes the Leader of the Council was 
to formally sign off the Councils response on 1 April 2021. 
 
Councillor M Johnson moved the recommendations as per the report; this was 
seconded by Councillor M Fitzgerald. The motion was unanimously agreed. 
 
 

Page 53



Alternative options considered 
 
Not to submit a Council response to the Governments consultation process. 
 
The reason for the decision 
 
To note the current activity and discussions on Local Government 
Reorganisation in Cumbria. 
 
To agree the necessary delegations required to submit a response to 
Government by the 19 April 2021 deadline. 
 
The decision 
 
Resolved 
 
That – 
 

 The activity and discussions that had taken place to date with regards to 
Local Government Reorganisation in Cumbria be noted  

 The process for agreeing a final submission as detailed in paragraph 4.6 
of the report be noted 

 The process for wider engagement as set out in paragraph 4.7 of the 
report be agreed. 

  
Resolved -  
 
 
“That under Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public 
be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the 
grounds that they may involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in paragraph 3 of part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act.” 

  
379. Acquisition of Buildings and Land in Maryport  

 
The subject of the decision 
 
The Programme Director, Maryport submitted a report which sought member’s 
approval of the acquisition of land and key buildings in Maryport, subject to 
confirmation of the Government Future High Street Programme. 
 
Councillor M Johnson moved the recommendations as per the report; this was 
seconded by Councillor M Fitzgerald. The motion was unanimously agreed. 
 
Alternative options considered 
 
Not to proceed with the acquisitions. However, failure to move forward with the 
purchases would reduce the amount of funding made available from the FHS 
programme as well as have a detrimental effect on the overall proposed 
programme. 
 
 

Page 54



The reason for the decision 
 
Approval of the acquisitions would act as a catalyst to enable the Council to 
commence the process of regenerating Maryport High Street were in 
accordance with plans submitted to the Government Future High Street 
Department in July 2020. 
 
The decision 
 
Resolved 
 
That the acquisition of the land and key buildings in Maryport as outlined in the 
report be approved. 
 

The meeting closed at 4.16 pm 
 

Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 56



At a meeting of the Executive held in Zoom Virtual Meeting on Wednesday 21 April 
2021 at 4.00 pm 
 
Members 
 
Councillor Mike Johnson (Chair)  
Councillor John Cook Councillor Marion Fitzgerald 
Councillor Jim Lister Councillor Anthony Markley 
Councillor Alan Pitcher  
 
 
Staff Present 
 
B Carlin, A Gilbert, N Hardy, L Jardine, K Kerrigan, C Nicholson, G Roach, G Wilson 
and P Wood 
 
 
400. Minutes  

 
The minutes of the meeting held on 24 March 2021 were agreed as a correct 
record. 
 

401. Declaration of Interests  
 
9. Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicle Tests. 

Councillor Marion Fitzgerald; Other Interest; Due to being a member of 
the Allerdale Waste Services Shareholder Committee. 

 
9. Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicle Tests. 

Councillor Mike Johnson; Other Interest; Due to being a member of the 
Allerdale Waste Services Shareholder Committee. 
 

402. Questions  
 
None received. 
 

403. Members' Announcements  
 
None received. 
 

404. Social Impact Investment Fund  
 
The subject of the decision 
 
The Assistant Chief Executive (Policy, Performance and Economic Strategy) 
submitted a report which sought member’s approval of the allocation of funds 
from the Social Impact Investment Fund for 2021-22. 
 
Councillor M Johnson moved the recommendations as per the report; this was 
seconded by Councillor M Fitzgerald. The motion was unanimously agreed. 
 
Alternative options considered 

Page 57



 
Funds may be allocated differently than set out in paragraph 4.3 of the report 
however, they must be allocated in line with the Sellafield Social Impact 
Strategy and the Energy Act 2016 and the Councils own priorities set out in the 
current Council Strategy 2020-30. 
 
The reason for the decision 
 
To agree the process for allocating funds from the Social Impact Investment 
Fund for 2021-22, subject to the decision of Sellafield Board to provide 
£500,000 each to Allerdale and Copeland for socio-economic activity. 
 
The decision 
 
Resolved 
 
That the allocation of funds from the Social Impact Investment Fund of 
£500,000 for 2021-22 be approved as outlined in paragraph 4.3 of the report. 
 

405. Hybrid Mail Procurement  
 
The subject of the decision 
 
The Assistant Chief Executive (Innovation and Commercial) submitted a report 
which sought approval of a contract for an outsourced hybrid mail service 
following a procurement process. 
 
Councillor M Johnson moved the recommendations as per the report; this was 
seconded by Councillor A Pitcher. The motion was unanimously agreed. 
 
Alternative options considered 
 
Not to outsource a hybrid mail service. 
 
The reason for the decision 
 
The Council had utilised an outsourced hybrid mail service since 2017, the 
contract was due to expire on 7 May 2021 and could not be extended further. 
 
The decision 
 
Resolved 
 
That the contract be awarded to supplier UK Mail DHL. 
 

406. New contract for Regulatory Service and Built Environment applications  
 
The subject of the decision 
 
The Assistant Chief Executive (Innovation and Commercial) submitted a report 
which sought approval of a contract for a cloud based platform for the 
Regulatory Services. 

Page 58



 
Councillor M Johnson moved the recommendations as per the report; this was 
seconded by Councillor T Markley. The motion was unanimously agreed. 
 
Alternative options considered 
 
None. 
 
The reason for the decision 
 
To award a new contract for delivery of a cloud-based platform for Regulatory 
Services to fulfil parts of an existing contract not fully implemented to ensure 
compliance with the Public Contract Regulations.  
 
The decision 
 
Resolved 
 
That the contract be awarded to Arcus Global Services. 
 

407. Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicle Tests  
 
The subject of the decision 
 
The Chief Officer for Place and Governance submitted a report which sought 
approval to award a contract for a testing centre for hackney carriage and 
private hire vehicles.  
 
Councillor J Lister moved the recommendations as per the report; this was 
seconded by Councillor J Cook. The motion was unanimously agreed. 
 
Alternative options considered 
 
To carry out a further procurement exercise to take place after Covid-19 
restrictions lifted or to award the contract directly to Allerdale Waste Services 
Ltd. 
 
The reason for the decision 
 
To ensure that suitable and sufficient testing facilities were available within the 
borough for vehicles to be tested in line with relevant legislation and the 
Councils conditions and terms of licence for hackney carriage and private hire 
vehicles. 
 
The decision 
 
Resolved 
 
That Allerdale Waste Services Ltd be awarded the contract for taxi testing.  
 
 
 

Page 59



408. Action Plan to Address Climate Change Update  
 
The subject of the decision 
 
The Chair of the Climate Change Group submitted a report for member’s 
approval of an updated Climate Change Action Plan. 
 
Councillor M Fitzgerald moved the recommendations as per the report; this was 
seconded by Councillor M Johnson. The motion was unanimously agreed. 
 
Alternative options considered 
 
Not to approve the amended Action Plan or to make further amendments. 
 
The reason for the decision 
 
The Climate Change Action Plan as agreed by Council on 4 March 2020 had 
been updated. 
 
The decision 
 
Resolved 
 
That – 
 

1) The updated Action Plan to address Climate Change, as presented at 
Appendix A to the report, be approved 

2) Any minor changes are to be approved by the Climate Change Group, in 
consultation with the Portfolio Holder, before the next annual update, and 
any major changes be submitted to the Executive for approval. 

 
The meeting closed at 4.27 pm 
 

Page 60



At a meeting of the Executive held in Wigton Market Hall, Cumberland & Solway Suite 
on Wednesday 12 May 2021 at 4.00 pm 
 
Members 
 
Councillor Mike Johnson (Chair)  
Councillor John Cook Councillor Marion Fitzgerald 
Councillor Jim Lister Councillor Anthony Markley 
Councillor Alan Pitcher  
 
 
Staff Present 
 
N Hardy, J Irving, L Jardine, C Nicholson, A Seekings and S Sewell 
 
 
427. Minutes  

 
Councillor J Cook moved an amendment to the minutes of the previous meeting 
held on 21 April 2021, under minute number 407 to read; 
‘Councillor J Lister moved the recommendations as per the report; this was 
seconded by Councillor J Cook’. 
 
The minutes were agreed as a correct record subject to the above amendment. 
 

428. Declaration of Interests  
 
None declared. 
 

429. Questions  
 
None received. 
 

430. Members' Announcements  
 
None received. 
 

431. Council Strategy Delivery Plan 2021/22  
 
The subject of the decision 
 
The Assistant Chief Executive (Policy, Performance and Economic Strategy) 
submitted a report which sought member’s approval of a draft Council Strategy 
Delivery Plan for 2021/22. 
 
Councillor M Fitzgerald moved the recommendation; this was seconded by 
Councillor M Johnson. The motion was unanimously agreed. 
 
Alternative options considered 
 
Not to approve the Delivery Plan. 
 

Page 61



The reason for the decision 
 
To approve the draft Delivery Plan for 2021/22. The Delivery Plan sets out 
specific activity to be undertaken during the next year in working towards 
achieving the objectives set out in the Council Strategy. 
 
The decision 
 
Resolved 
 
That the draft Council Strategy Delivery Plan 2021/22 as presented at Appendix 
A of the report be approved. 
 

432. Economic Recovery and Growth Strategy  
 
The subject of the decision 
 
The Assistant Chief Executive (Policy, Performance and Economic Strategy) 
submitted a report which sought member’s approval of the Economic Recovery 
and Growth Strategy. 
 
Councillor M Johnson moved the recommendations as per the report; this was 
seconded by Councillor M Fitzgerald. The motion was unanimously agreed. 
 
Alternative options considered 
 
Not to approve the Strategy. 
 
The reason for the decision 
 
The Council’s strategic approach to economic growth was last refreshed in 
2016 with the adoption of the Allerdale Business Growth Strategy. 
 
The decision 
 
Resolved 
 
That – 
 

1. The work undertaken during the past 12 months to develop a new 
economic strategy be noted 
 

2. The Economic Growth and Recovery Strategy 2021 as attached as 
Appendix A to the report be approved 

 
3. Final approval of the Implementation Plan and any minor amendments to 

the strategy be delegated to the Assistant Chief Executive (Policy, 
Performance and Economic Strategy) in consultation with the Leader of 
the Council. 

 
The meeting closed at 4.15 pm 
 

Page 62



Allerdale Borough Council 
 

Council – 28 July 2021 

 

Review of Council Governance Arrangements  

and Structure 

 
 
Portfolio holder   Councillor M Fitzgerald 

Portfolio Holder for Policy, Governance and People 
Resources 

Report from    Sharon Sewell, Chief Officer Place & Governance 

Wards affected   All wards 

Is this a key decision  No 
 

 
 

1.0 The reason for the decision 

 
1.1 On 17 July 2019 the Council agreed to instruct officers to prepare a detailed report 

to be considered by the Council’s Constitution Working Group and a future Council 
meeting setting out every option for future governance structures including the 
committee structure, hybrid models of governance, the current model and any other 
option that is available to be considered. 

 

2.0  Recommendations 

That Members agree: 
 

2.1.1 the actions set out in paragraph 5; 
2.1.2 that the actions be monitored by the Constitution Working Group. 

 

3.0      Introduction 

 
3.1 On 17 July 2019 the Council agreed to instruct officers to prepare a detailed report 

to be considered by the Council’s Constitution Working Group and a future Council 
meeting setting out every option for future governance structures including the 
committee structure, hybrid models of governance, the current model and any other 
option that is available to be considered. 

 

Page 63

Agenda Item 11



3.2 On 29 September 2019 Council agreed the scoping document and terms of 
reference for the Constitution Working Group’ review of the Council’s Governance 
arrangements. 

 
3.3 The Council requested the Local Government Association (LGA) to commission or 

provide support to review the Councils Governance Arrangements. 
 

3.4 The LGA commissioned the Centre for Public Scrutiny to undertake a review of the 
current governance arrangements which took place on 11 and 12 February 2020. 

 
3.5 The response and the consideration by the Constitution Working Group was 

delayed due to Covid-19. 
 

4.0  Content 

 
4.1      Allerdale Borough Council requested the LGA to commission or provide support to              

review the Council’s governance arrangements. The purpose of this review was to 
give the Council an external perspective on how the current model as well as others 
could be used for enhancing councillor involvement, openness and transparency, 
local democracy and community participation. 

 
4.2 The LGA has experience of working with different councils over a number of years 

to review governance arrangements and improve decision making. At the centre of 
these reviews is the drive for more effective and relevant governance arrangements 
which improve decision making locally. Given the unique positioning in the sector, 
the LGA has access to expert officers, members and partners who understand good 
governance and are familiar with the issues and opportunities presented by different 
governance options. 

 
4.3 On 17 July 2019 the Council agreed to instruct officers to prepare a detailed report 

to be considered by the Council’s Constitution Working Group and a future Council 
meeting setting out every option for future governance structures including the 
committee structure, hybrid models of governance, the current model and any other 
option that is available to be considered. 

 
4.4 The Local Government Association commissioned the Centre for Public Scrutiny to               

undertake a review of the current governance arrangements which took place on 11 

and 12 February 2020. This review built upon the feedback given as part of the 

Council’s Corporate Peer Challenge which took place in September 2019. 

4.5 The team observed a consensus between Members and Officers that the current 
approach to governance was now more open and inclusive than it was around the 
time of the 2019 ‘all out’ elections when discussions about this work began. 
Members reported being more able to engage in decision making than they had 
previously. At the time of this review, an overall preference to maintain and 
strengthen where possible, the existing Executive – Scrutiny model was evident. 
This however included the wish to develop additional ‘hybrid’ features that would 
provide more opportunities for wider Member involvement. 

 

Page 64



4.6 The team did not observe or detect any consensus for a significant change in 

governance model at this time. Most Members spoke of a reasonable level of 

satisfaction with the current model. Overall Members were seeking further 

improvements and relatively smaller changes to the existing model to help provide 

enhanced inclusion, transparency and Member involvement in policy shaping and 

decision-making.  

5.0       Delivery Arrangements 

 
5.1 It was suggested that if the current model is to be reinforced and improved to allow 

greater and more inclusive member involvement, the role of Scrutiny will need to be 
elevated and its constructive relationship with the Executive strengthened. Allerdale 
Borough Council has a significant number of new and first-time councillors, who 
have a varied knowledge and experience of local government. Expectations of the 
Member role can differ considerably as individual councillors seek to represent the 
diverse interests of their constituents and seek to change how they wish the council 
to serve its residents. This can sometimes lead to additional pressures and 
demands on officer time given the range of member interests and expectations. 
Greater support for Members, through advice, guidance, training and development 
would help both Members and officers. A programme of further change and 
improvement of the existing governance model over the next 6 months would 
potentially deliver what Members appear to want – further inclusion, transparency 
and involvement in good governance. 

 
5.2 There was a delay in LGA issuing their findings and then the Council considering 

the recommendations and the Constitution Working Group meeting due to Covid-

19, however, officers have continued to progress the recommendations. 

5.3 The Council’s Constitution Working Group have met on 2 occasions and considered 

the suggested steps, the changes already put in place and the ways in which further 

improvement can be achieved. The Group have suggested the action plan set out 

below. 

5.4 Suggested steps 

5.4.1 The Council recognises that there are more new members with specific mandates 

and expectations to serve their residents. Therefore, further investment in member 

support and guidance to assist them to fulfil their roles may be necessary. It will 

also need members to develop their relationship with officers and grow their 

knowledge and understanding of what can be achieved and how that is managed 

within a democratic process. 

 

The Chief Executive has engaged the LGA to provide support to members through 

support and training offered through their groups and to members as a whole. 

 Virtual training has been provided on roles and responsibilities and the 

Member/Officer Protocol has been regularly communicated. 

Page 65



A comprehensive Induction Programme was provided for the 5 newly elected 

members in May 2021. 

Action: The Member Development Working Group to review the Member Training 

and Development Programme taking into consideration the members Personal 

Development Plans and ensure delivery of a comprehensive programme for 

2021/22. 

5.4.2 Develop and agree an appropriate Officer-Member-Cabinet protocol which sets out 

a framework of how roles, responsibilities, expected behaviours, information, 

communication and other cultural and organisational matters work. This may help to 

increase clarity and strengthen working practices and understanding. There are 

several good examples which could be drawn and adapted from other similar 

councils. 

 

The Member Officer/Protocol was reviewed in 2019 and has been frequently 

communicated to Officers and Members. 

 

The Chief Executive meets with each group separately and with the Group Leaders 

to ensure a consistent approach on framework, responsibilities, expected 

behaviours, information and communication. 

 

Action: The Constitution Working Group to review other Council’s protocols and 

consider whether there are other protocols/guidance/training which could enhance 

the Councils current protocols. 

 

5.4.3 Continue to build and strengthen the communication and collaborative cross-party 

working through structured meetings and briefings. 

 

The Chief Executive meets the Group Leaders to assist in building and 

strengthening communication and collaborative cross-party working. 

 

This continues to be a priority for the Executive, this approach has proved 

successful in terms of Local Government Re-organisation where a communication 

plan was agreed to include structured meetings and briefings to ensure meaningful 

engagement across the membership. A similar approach is being taken with GDF.  

5.4.4 Consider creating a policy advisory member group that works collaboratively with 

Cabinet Members to consider, discuss and help inform policy development. This 

could further increase participation and allow Members the opportunity to 

constructively influence policy and strategy. 

 

The Assistant Chief Executive has created a cross party policy group who meet and 

consider and discuss strategic issues, emerging strategic documents and draft 

documents that tend to be in the early stages of policy development before it gets 

into the scrutiny domain. The group has met a number of times during the course of 

the last 12 months and will continue to meet and a review will take place to assess 

whether any changes are required to enhance the group. 

Page 66



Action: The Assistant Chief Executive to review the approach with the current group 

and consider any further improvements which could improve engagement. 

5.4.5 At the same time to build the role of Scrutiny to engage more ‘up-stream’ in the 

policy and decision-making process where it is able to provide greater input and 

value. This will essentially require additional support and a council-wide collective 

response to allow it to happen. This should bring additional council benefits by 

introducing greater focus to Cabinet forward plans through pre-decision scrutiny. It 

would also enhance the impact and value of scrutiny and give more Members 

greater access to help shape and influence. 

 

Overview and Scrutiny consider the Executives Forward Plan at every meeting and 

agree where they could provide greater input and value. 

The Senior Management Team and Executive consider the forward plan at informal 

meetings and will identify where they consider Scrutiny could provide greater input 

and value. 

Action: Executive and the Scrutiny Co-Chairs to discuss where they consider 

Scrutiny could provide greater input. 

5.4.6 The Council has used Task and Finish (T&F) groups through its Scrutiny committee 

to focus on specific issues and areas of interest to Members and communities. 

While T&Fs are highly demanding on time and resources, their impact and value 

can justify the investment in them. There is scope to make T&F more useful and 

effective by ensuring that they are limited to only 3 per year, are clearly scoped and 

time limited. They should also have agreed goals which support council corporate 

objectives and produce a useable outcome or ‘product’ which delivers quality insight 

and recommendations that have measurable impact. 

 

5.4.7 Officers should consider with members how to support, assist and advise Scrutiny 

to achieve greater alignment with the council’s corporate plan and current key 

objectives. Often this can be a discussion to help scope scrutiny plans to ensure 

that scrutiny has the right information to perform its task. Reports to scrutiny may 

need to be reassessed in light of this and new ways of providing evidence or 

background to address scrutiny needs might also be explored as a result. 

 

Action: Training is being arranged to assist Members and Officers on the role and 

function of Scrutiny, to develop understanding on what is good and effective 

Scrutiny with a longer term view on building a support programme for Scrutiny Co-

Chairs and Members. 

 

5.4.8 Scrutiny and Cabinet should aim to work collaboratively but remain independent of 

each other. Regular communication and meetings to discuss each other’s work 

programmes to enable scrutiny greater visibility on where best to train its resources 

to ensure good, objective and quality scrutiny. 

 

Page 67



An Executive/Scrutiny Protocol was agreed and Scrutiny Co-Chairs are invited to 

attend Informal Executive meetings. 

Action: The Executive and Co-Chairs to review the arrangements and agree any 

further improvements as and when required 

 

5.4.9 Members often see meetings of the full Council as an opportunity to raise important 

issues or community concerns, through questions, motions and debate. This 

appears to be appreciated by Members and should be maintained. 

 

The Council has maintained the Portfolio Holder Update reports in the Council 

agenda, detailed reports continue to be provided and questions are answered and 

responded to at Council. Follow up responses are provided in writing to all 

Councillors if not provided in the meeting and the Executive have offered 

Councillors to send any queries in to them which they will respond to ASAP. 

Action: To maintain this approach 

5.4.10While gaining interest and participation by the public is often a challenge for 

councils, it is important to provide good access, openness and transparency. 

Providing as many channels as possible and practical for public engagement will 

require further effort and innovation. Members of the public can already submit 

questions, but there is more that could be considered. We recommend that more 

and new options for engagement are explored, such as holding meetings (Cabinet, 

Scrutiny etc) in public places around the Borough, exploring affordable webcast or 

video recording and use of social media channels to encourage members of the 

public to raise issues or questions. 

 
All meetings are open to the public and all agenda papers, reports and decisions 
made by the Council are published on the Council’s website together with details of 
forthcoming consultation exercises, surveys and public meetings, except those 
determined as exempt from publication. 
 
The Council was successfully running virtual meetings since June 2020 due to 
Covid-19. The meetings were broadcast live on the Allerdale Borough Council 
YouTube page and the Council received much larger viewing numbers than when 
meetings were held in Allerdale House. The Council is now running meetings in 
person in accordance with the relevant legislation but has continued to look to 
continue the live broadcast of meetings and continue to promote its open and 
transparent agenda. 
 
Venues will also be explored however, at present the options are restricted by the 
safety measures required in accordance with the Council’s risk assessments and 
other venues’ risk assessments. 

 
The Council has continued to develop its digital communication tools, particularly 
important over 2020-21 in light of the Covid-19 restrictions on in person contact.  
The Council introduced a new series of email newsletters which provide information 
direct to the inboxes of local residents. These have proved to be extremely popular 

Page 68



with over 6,000 subscribers and a high engagement rate which remains above the 
average rate for the top-20% of local councils. Regular email contact has improved 
the delivery of information about issues such as the coronavirus outbreak, and 
business support. The Council has also enjoyed good levels of engagement on its 
social media channels, has started a new Facebook group for business, has paid-
for posts to target key sectors of our communities, and has just started delivering 
messages via the Nextdoor platform which can be used to target messaging down 
to a very local level.   

 

 Action: The Constitution Working Group to consider best practice (including new 

practices post Covid-19) in relation to options for public engagement. 

6.0 Implications and Impact 

6.1 Contribution to Council Strategy Priorities, Outputs and Outcomes  

 Clearly defines roles/responsibilities and enhances accountability. 

6.2 Finance/Resource implications 

 Travel / subsistence would be met from existing budget provision.  

6.3 Legal and governance implications  

  Clearly defines roles/responsibilities and training and development enhances 
accountability. 

6.4 Risk analysis 

 A scored and mitigated risk log 
 

Risk Consequence Controls required 
Mitigated 
score 

The actions are not 
implemented 

The identified 
improvements such as 
councillor engagement 
and understanding of 
roles & responsibilities 
are not realised 

Quarterly monitoring 
by the Constitution 
Working Group 

1 

 

6.5 Increasing satisfaction and service 

None directly from this report 

6.6 Equality impacts 

 The Equality duty has been considered  

6.7 Health and Safety impacts 

 None directly from this report 

6.8 Health, wellbeing and community safety impacts 

 None directly from this report 

Page 69



6.9 Environmental/sustainability impacts 

 None directly from this report 

6.10 Other significant implications 

None 

Appendices attached to this report 

 

Appendix number Title of appendix 

N/C  

 

Background documents available 

 

Name of background document Where it is available 

Scoping document and Terms of 
Reference for Constitution Working 
Group 

Council and Democracy webpage 

 
Report author(s) and contact officer(s): 
Sharon Sewell 
Chief Officer Place and Governance – Monitoring Officer 
sharon.sewell@allerdale.gov.uk 
Tel no. 01900 702887 

Page 70



 

 

 

Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee  

Annual Summary 2020 - 21 
 

“Allerdale – a great place to live, work and visit” 
 

Page 71

Agenda Item 12



Overview and Scrutiny Committee Annual Summary 2020-2021 

 

 Foreword 

 

Although it’s now twenty years since Overview & Scrutiny Committees were first 

introduced by Local Government Act 2000, it’s fair to say that their role is still not 

widely understood. This is something which I hope the Member Development 

Working Group will pick up, for non-members of the Committee, as used 

constructively, the overview and scrutiny process can enhance the ability of non-

executive members to influence the development of Council policy and ensure that 

the Council is “doing the right things”. 

By the time this Report is presented, it may be that the Secretary of State has 

determined what he intends the future structure of our local Government(s) to be, in 

Cumbria. That’s something the Committee was bearing in mind when considering 

the work programme for 2021-22: 

 Youth, and our role as a collective parent to youngsters who have had a very 

rough time over the last eighteen months; 

 Local communities and places and how they can relate to and be served in a 

much bigger local Council area; 

 Culture Leisure Recreation and Sport and its place in any new Council 

structures and provision. 

It’s important that we are clear what legacy we wish to leave to our successors, 

although ultimately, it’s for them to decide. 

One other new development just taking off is the resetting of collaboration between 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee and Audit Committee, the subject of a recent report 

by the Centre for Governance & Scrutiny. A reference from Overview & Scrutiny to 

Audit is mentioned in the body of the Report, and no doubt there will be more as 

Overview & Scrutiny develops its capability to help Audit Committee in the key roles 

of assuring Value for Money and developing the Annual Governance Statement. 

It could be an interesting year ahead. 

 

Councillor Michael Heaslip   

 

Co-Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee  

 

Page 72



Overview and Scrutiny Committee Annual Summary 2020-2021 

 

Committee membership 2020-2021 

The Committee consists of twelve members. During 2020-2021 the members were: 

Councillor Antony Annison 

Councillor Carmel Bell  

Councillor John Crouch 

Councillor Allan Daniels 

Councillor Malcolm Grainger 

Councillor Iain Greaney 

Councillor Michael Heaslip 

Councillor Joe Holliday 

Councillor Daniel Horsley 

Councillor Adrian Kirkbride 

Councillor Carni McCarron-Holmes 

Councillor Paul Scott 

 

The Committee wishes to recognise the significant commitment, experience and 

knowledge Councillor Joe Holliday brought to its proceedings before he passed 

away during the year. 

 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee meetings 

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee met ten times during 2020/21. The 

Committee considered a wide variety of subjects over the course of those meetings 

as indicated below. 

 
At the meeting on 19 June 2020, the new Committee members were introduced, 

received a presentation on the Council Strategy and considered the work 

programme for the year.  

 

At the meeting on 17 July, the Committee considered its annual review of the 

Community Safety Partnership and the responses to the pandemic.  

 

At the meeting on 28 August, the Committee focused on the current Maryport 

programmes, and the legal test for a Public Spaces Protection Order relating to dog 

fouling.   

 
At the meeting on 16 October, the Committee considered the Resilient Communities 

and Economic Growth strategies.  

 

At the meeting on 6 November, the Committee held a special meeting focusing on 

the local government reorganisation proposals for Cumbria. 

 

At the meeting on 27 November, the Committee considered the draft Waste and 

Recycling Policy. 

 

Page 73



Overview and Scrutiny Committee Annual Summary 2020-2021 

 

At the meeting on 15 January 2021, the Committee considered the progress of the 

Climate Change Group and further considered the Resilient Communities strategy.  

 

At the meeting on 26 February, the Committee received a presentation on the project 

management system and further considered the Economic Recovery and Growth 

Strategy.  

 

At the meeting on 26 March, the Committee considered the progress of the 

programmes in Workington and Maryport.  

 

At the meeting on 23 April, the Committee heard updates from some of the Council’s 

representatives to outside bodies and considered the final drafts of the draft Council 

Delivery Plan and the Economic Recovery and Growth Strategy.   

 

Task and Finish Group activity 

 

The Committee had agreed in previous years that each task and finish group will 

include at least one person from the Committee as a member and the chair of the 

group, however the aim is always to involve the wider membership with all members 

encouraged to take part in task and finish groups according to their interests and/or 

knowledge.   

 

The groups which met during the year are summarised below: 

 

Procurement Task and Finish Group 

 

The group focused on the procurement process followed in the selection of 

contractors for waste collection and recycling, street cleaning and grass cutting. The 

group heard from officers involved throughout the process. The group concluded by 

producing a report with 17 recommendations which was presented to and accepted 

by Executive. The report was also commended by the Council’s external auditor who 

recommended it should be overseen for implementation by the Council’s Audit 

Committee. 

 

The group consisted of Councillor Carmel Bell (chair), Councillor Malcolm Grainger 

(vice chair), Councillor Iain Greaney, and Councillor Sally Lansbury. 

 

Response to the Pandemic Task and Finish Group 

 

This group was established to consider aspects of the Council’s response to the 

pandemic and ran separate sets of sessions to explore three topics: the practical 

response of dealing with the pandemic in the first weeks, the effect of the pandemic 

on young people and communities and the proposals for council staffing and delivery 

Page 74



Overview and Scrutiny Committee Annual Summary 2020-2021 

 

of services beyond the pandemic. A short report with recommendations has been 

produced for each iteration. 

 

The group consisted of Councillor Michael Heaslip (chair), Councillor Peter Kendall, 

Councillor Elaine Lynch, Councillor Carni McCarron-Holmes and Councillor Paul 

Scott. 

 

Budget Task and Finish Group 

 
The group considered summaries of bids for recurring growth, non-recurring growth, 

recurring savings, non-recurring savings, and other financial proposals and changes, 

all of which had been considered at a series of budget review meetings.  

 

While the group had questions about particular aspects of the figures, the primary 

concern focused on was whether the proposed budget would help to deliver the 

Council Strategy. 

 

The group consisted of Councillor Michael Heaslip (chair), Councillor Elaine Lynch, 

Councillor Alan Smith and Councillor Will Wilkinson. 

 

Working in conjunction with Audit and Risk Committee 

 

The Co-Chairs met with the Chair and Vice-Chair of the Audit Committee during the 

year to explore the relationship of the two committees in terms of their respective 

remits, potential areas of collaboration and clarifying aspects of possible confusion in 

trying to determine the similarities and differences of the two committees. 

 

Future work programme 

 

The work programme is reviewed by the Committee at each business meeting to 

ensure that it remains up to date and any changing circumstances or additional 

emerging topics are considered.   

 

More information on the scrutiny function, including agendas, minutes, ongoing 

review work, and Councillor details can be found on the Council’s website at 

www.allerdale.gov.uk 

Page 75

http://www.allerdale.gov.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 76



Allerdale Borough Council 
 

Council – 28 July 2021 

 

Governance Updates 

 
 
Portfolio holder   Councillor M Fitzgerald, 

PH Policy, Governance and People Resources 

Report from Sharon Sewell, Chief Officer Place & Governance, 
Monitoring Officer  

Wards affected All wards 

Is this a key decision  No 
 

 
 

1.0 The reason for the decision 

 
1.1 To report on urgent delegated decisions taken since the last report to Council on 3 

March 2021; 
 

1.2 To nominate members to serve as the Council’s representatives on the Workington 
Harbour Management Committee outside body; 
 

1.3 To update on changes to political proportionality and committee memberships 
following the resignation from Councillor Stephen Stoddart from all committees. 

2.0  Recommendations 

 
2.1 To note a summary of all CEO Urgent Action decisions and Special Urgency 

Executive decisions as detailed in section 4.0 of the report; 
 
2.2 That nominations be sought for Council representatives to serve on the Workington 

Harbour Management Committee outside body; 
 
2.3 That the Allerdale Conservatives group nominate a member to be appointed to the 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

3.0  Background and Introduction 

 
3.1 Section 4.35.4 of the Constitution gives the Chief Executive the power to exercise 

functions of the Council in very urgent circumstances, following consultation with 

Page 77

Agenda Item 13



the Mayor and the Leader of the Council. Those decisions must be reported to the 
next meeting of the Council. 

3.2 Section 11.16 of the Council’s Constitution provides that where an Executive 
decision is sufficiently urgent it may be taken immediately under Special Urgency 
powers; this means in effect that there is no requirement for the decision to have 
been included on the Council’s forward plan for the requisite 28 days, or for the call-
in procedure to apply.  Where these powers are invoked, the approval of the Chair 
of Overview and Scrutiny Committee is required before the decision can be taken. 

3.3 On 24 June 2021 Councillor Stephen Stoddart resigned from his seat on the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee and all other Council committees. Council is now 
required to review the allocation of seats on committees to each political group. 

4.0  Content 

 Delegated Decisions 

 
4.1 Since the last report to Council the following decision was taken under the Chief 

Executives Urgent Action powers:  

1 – Covid-19 NHS Test and Track Self-Isolation Payments (revised) 

Date: 9 April 2021 

Reason for urgency: As part of the measures of assistance in relation to COVID-19, 
the Government announced additional support to parents and guardians of children 
or young people asked to self-isolate by the NHS test and trace scheme or an 
educational or childcare provider and extended the whole scheme to 30 June 2021. 
Cumbria County Council had also provided additional monies to help provide 
support for more low-income households than funds currently allow.  

The Government asked us to make payments available as quickly as possible to 
assist in reducing the spread of COVID-19.  In order to make payments, the 
Government would provide a grant to local authorities.   

As is the case in all local authorities, Allerdale Borough Council needed to amend 
its existing discretionary policy to reflect those changes requested by government 
and to agree the new policy under emergency delegations. The Government asked 
for payments to commence on or as soon as possible from 7 April 2021.  

4.2 Since the previous reporting the following decisions were taken under the Special 
Urgency provisions: 

 1 – Acquisition of Christchurch, Maryport 

 Date: 11 March 2021 

 Reason for urgency: The Option Agreement expired on 14 March. All risks are 
detailed in the published report. 

 

Page 78



 2 – Heads of Terms offer for the Workington Town Deal 

 Date: 22 March 2021 
 
 Reason for Urgency: As part of the Budget announcement on 3 March 2021 it was 

announced that Workington was being offered a Town Deal to a value of 
£23.1million. Signed Heads of Terms for the proposed Town Deal were to be 
returned to MHCLG by 24 March 2021 signed by the Chair of the Town Deal Board 
and the Chief Executive of Allerdale Borough Council. 
 
Nominations to Outside Body 
 

4.3 The Workington Harbour Management Committee is a Cumbria County Council 
Committee, it is appointed to by the County Council at its Annual Meeting each 
year. Allerdale Borough Council has three member representatives that sit on this 
Committee. This report requests that Council provides three nominations in line with 
the County Council annual arrangements.  
 

4.4 Council is therefore asked to nominate three member representatives to serve on 
the Workington Harbour Management Committee for the forthcoming year. 

 
 Changes to Political Balance on Council Committees 
 
4.5 The first stage of the review is to make a calculation of the numerical allocation of 

seats based on the percentage of seats to which each political group (total of 48 
members) would be entitled when applying the normal rounding up/down rules. 

 Once this has been worked out, then the places on each committee have to be 
proportionate to the number of seats that each political group has on the Council. 

 
4.6 The political make-up of the Council and entitlement to seats across committees is 

now as follows: 
 

Political Group Seats on Council Entitlement to 
Committee Seats 

Allerdale Conservatives 18 25 

Allerdale Independents 17 23 

Labour 13 18 

Total 48 = Total 66 = Total 

 
4.7 Following the recalculations the Allerdale Conservatives Group have gained one 

additional committee seat overall taking them to 25 seats. This additional seat is the 
vacant seat on the Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

 The Allerdale Independents and Labour groups’ total entitlement was unchanged. 
 

4.8 The Allerdale Conservatives Group will nominate a group member to be appointed 
to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee at the Council meeting. 

5.0  Delivery arrangements 

 
5.1 Not applicable to this report. 

Page 79



6.0 Implications and Impact 

6.1 Contribution to Council Strategy Priorities, Outputs and Outcomes  

6.2 Finance/Resource implications 

Those members formally appointed to external organisations as the Council’s 
representative are able to claim expenses in accordance with the Councillors 
Allowance Scheme. These costs can be met from existing resources. 

6.3 Legal and governance implications  

 Section 4.35.4 of the Councils Constitution gives the Chief Executive the power to 
exercise functions of the Council in very urgent circumstances, following 
consultation with the Mayor and the Leader of the Council. Those decisions must be 
reported to the next meeting of the Council. 

 Appointments to Outside Bodies may be made under the general power in S2 of the 
Local Government Act 2000, to do anything which is likely to promote the economic, 
social or environmental wellbeing of the area, unless specifically prohibited. 

6.4 Risk analysis 

 A scored and mitigated risk log 
 

Risk Consequence Controls required 
Mitigated 
score 

Member 
representative 
appointments not 
made to all of the 
outside bodies/joint 
committees 

This could hinder the 
Council in furthering its 
interest and priorities 
and not develop the 
external facing role of 
the members 

Regular 
appointments made 
by Council in line with 
the outside bodies 
terms of 
reference/constitution 

Low 

Decision making 
arrangements not  
effectively 
monitored and 
reported 

Lack of transparency. 
Breach of 
Constitutional 
procedures  

Regular reporting to 
Council 

Low 

 

6.5 Increasing satisfaction and service 

 Not applicable to this report. 

6.6 Equality impacts 

 Equality impacts have been considered. 

6.7 Health and Safety impacts 

 There are no health and safety implications directly associated with this report. 

6.8 Health, wellbeing and community safety impacts 

There are no health, wellbeing and community safety implications directly 
associated with this report. 

Page 80



6.9 Environmental/sustainability impacts 

There are no environmental/sustainability implications directly associated with this 
report. 

6.10 Other significant implications 

 None 
 

Appendices attached to this report 

 

Appendix number Title of appendix 

N/A  

 

Background documents available 

 

Name of background document Where it is available 

N/A  

 
 
Report author(s) and contact officer(s): 
Gayle Roach 
Democratic and Support Services Manager 
gayle.roach@allerdale.gov.uk  
Tel no. 01900 702502 

Page 81

mailto:gayle.roach@allerdale.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 82


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	8 Announcements from the Mayor, Leader or Head of Paid Service
	9 Portfolio Holder updates
	10 Executive Minutes
	Minutes , 24/02/2021 Executive
	Minutes , 24/03/2021 Executive
	Minutes , 21/04/2021 Executive
	Minutes , 12/05/2021 Executive

	11 Review of Council Governance Arrangements and Structure
	12 Overview and Scrutiny Committee Annual Report 2020-21
	13 Governance Updates

